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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'd like to call

          3  this meeting of the Subcommittee on Zoning and

          4  Franchises to order.

          5                 Joining me this morning are Committee

          6  Members, Mike McMahon, Helen Sears, Melinda Katz, Al

          7  Vann and Simcha Felder. We have a number of items on

          8  the agenda which we will begin with and then after

          9  the regular business agenda, we will go onto a

         10  Special Zoning for the Future Hearing. We have a

         11  number of community boards and community groups that

         12  are here to testify on suggestions and comments

         13  about how we can approve the zoning code of the City

         14  of New York.

         15                 The first item is regard City

         16  Planning. I'd like to have City Planning come up.

         17  What I suggest we do is the Maspeth Woodside

         18  Rezoning first, the presentation on that. That is

         19  Land Use No, preconsidered Land Use, Maspeth

         20  Woodside Rezoning, C060294 ZMQ. The application lies

         21  mostly within Council Member Gioia's district and

         22  partly within Council Member Gallagher's district.

         23                 MR. YOUNG: Good morning, Chair Avella

         24  and good morning ladies and gentlemen. I'm John

         25  Young and I'm Director of the Queens Office for the
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          2  Department of City Planning. On behalf of City

          3  Planning, Director Amanda Burden, I'm very pleased

          4  to be here this morning to present two of the

          5  Department's efforts to comprehensively update

          6  zoning designations in two distinct areas in Queens,

          7  the Maspeth Woodside Rezoning in western Queens and

          8  the Jamaica Hill/Hillcrest rezoning located near the

          9  center of the borough. I'm joined by Neil Gailiardi

         10  (phonetic) who will present our Maspeth Woodside

         11  rezoning to you.

         12                 Like many other communities in Queens

         13  and throughout the City, the areas are experiencing

         14  surge in population growth and extremely strong

         15  housing demands. Both areas grew at rates

         16  approximately 17 percent between 1990 and 2000, and

         17  those growth rates have continued. They are faster

         18  than the growth rates for the borough which was 14.2

         19  percent and the City overall which was 9.4 percent.

         20                 The Department's rezoning proposals

         21  for both areas, therefore, are thoughtful efforts to

         22  meet the challenge presented by the growth in these

         23  neighborhoods by channeling it to locations where it

         24  can best be accommodated and establishing lower

         25  density and contextual zoning districts to more
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          2  closely reflect the well established patterns of

          3  housing on the residential side streets.

          4                 For each proposal, the Department has

          5  developed a carefully delineated rezoning strategy

          6  that addresses the concerns of residents in these

          7  communities that recent development trends are

          8  undermining their established character. And in each

          9  proposal, appropriately scaled new development is

         10  accommodated in locations on wide streets, near

         11  transit, consistent with buildings already in these

         12  locations.

         13                 As you will see when the Maspeth

         14  Woodside Rezoning is presented, the Queens Boulevard

         15  corridor already has a medium density zone (R7X),

         16  and then encompasses six blocks front from 57th to

         17  64th Streets and it has produced eight to 11 story

         18  buildings that blend in with existing buildings.

         19  Under the proposed rezoning, this zone, R7X, would

         20  be extended eastward and westward along the Queens

         21  Boulevard corridor while 110 residential blocks

         22  would be rezoned using lower density and contextual

         23  designations.

         24                 Similarly, for the Jamaica

         25  Hill/Hillcrest rezoning, about 60 blocks will be
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          2  contextually rezoned and frontages of nine blocks

          3  along Union Turnpike and Parsons Boulevard will be

          4  rezoned to allow moderate new development of three

          5  and four stories consistent with existing apartment

          6  buildings along these streets. For this rezoning, a

          7  new zoning district is proposed (R5D) that has

          8  stricter height limits and improved residential

          9  parking requirements than comparable existing zones.

         10                 As Director Burden noted when the

         11  creation of this district was announced, in order to

         12  enable modest growth on the wider streets of some of

         13  our lower density neighborhoods, we must address the

         14  concerns of height and parking, which this new R5D

         15  district will do. It is a targeted tool to enable us

         16  to house increased population within height limits

         17  that make sense for these communities. The proposed

         18  R5D district would set a building height cap at 40

         19  feet compared to the 35 feet height limit in the one

         20  and two family zones such as R2A, R3A, and R4A that

         21  are proposed elsewhere as part of the Jamaica

         22  Hill/Hillcrest rezoning. Parking would be required

         23  for 66 percent of the residential units and

         24  subdivision of zoning lots to reduce parking

         25  provisions that can occur in comparable zones would
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          2  be restricted in this zone.

          3                 Updating the 45- year- old zoning

          4  patterns to achieve orderly growth that protects the

          5  appealing qualities of these neighborhoods has been

          6  a long quest for area civic associations and has

          7  been the Department's privilege to have worked

          8  closely with them to shape and refine the proposal.

          9  We know that it has taken a considerable amount of

         10  time and effort to reach this point, but we could

         11  not have made it here without their contributions.

         12                 Likewise, Council Members Gennaro,

         13  Gioio and Gallagher have each provided critical

         14  input into the rezoning proposals. The City Planning

         15  Commission modified the Jamaica Hill/Hillcrest

         16  rezoning to retain more of the existing zoning along

         17  164th Street as recommended by Council Member

         18  Gennaro and in response to concerns raised by

         19  Community Board 8 and local civic groups.

         20                 We are very pleased to have received

         21  support from Community Boards 2 and 5 for the

         22  Maspeth Woodside Rezoning as well as the Borough

         23  President Helen Marshall for both rezonings. We look

         24  forward to discussing them both with you and Neil

         25  will present Maspeth Woodside.
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          2                 MR. GAILIARDI: Thank you, John. Good

          3  morning.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Excuse me, Mr.

          5  Chairman. Could we identify who he is and from

          6  where?

          7                 MR. GAILIARDI: Yes, I am Neil

          8  Gailiardi. I am Planner at the Department of City

          9  Planning Queens Office. I'm a little infirmed today,

         10  if you will excuse me. The general rezoning area is

         11  bounded on the north by Woodside and Roosevelt

         12  Avenues on the East by 73rd Street in the Long

         13  Island Railroad cut and the Queens Midtown

         14  Expressway on the South and generally the New

         15  Calvary Cemetery and the Mt. Zion Cemetery on the

         16  western boundary.

         17                 The neighborhoods of Maspeth and

         18  Woodside are characterized by a mix of row houses,

         19  two family detached and semi- detached homes, multi-

         20  family walk- up apartment buildings and elevator

         21  apartment buildings. And intersperse throughout are

         22  a number of single family homes on underdeveloped

         23  lots. Along the major corridors like Roosevelt,

         24  Woodside and also Queens Boulevard, local retail and

         25  automotive related uses prevail. The existing zoning
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          2  districts, actually the area that I just wanted to

          3  point out the two districts, District 2 is north of

          4  Maurice Avenue which is here and District 5 is south

          5  of that.

          6                 The rezoning area encompasses a

          7  number of zoning districts. But the prevalent one is

          8  the R4 district which allows a multitude of housing

          9  types and multiple family housing types at a .9

         10  floor area ratio. What is significant about the R4

         11  is the R4 in fill provision which is allowed on

         12  blocks predominantly built up and most of these

         13  blocks certainly qualify for that and there is a 50

         14  percent increase in the FAR with the R4 in fill.

         15                 Now during the public review and our

         16  study of this that the R4 in fill has been

         17  attributed to creating a lot of the out of character

         18  development on those interior residential lots.

         19  There is also an R4 zoning district to the south

         20  which was rezoned. This area is not new to some

         21  rezonings. In Maspeth, the R4- 1 has the same floor

         22  area ratio, but allows only one- and two- family

         23  homes in that area. And that was rezoned in 1993 to

         24  be more consistent with the existing scale.

         25                 To the north, in the early 1990's,
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          2  1992, there was also a rezoning that mapped a number

          3  of contextual zones; R5B, R6B, to better comply with

          4  the existing context of those areas too. As John

          5  mentioned, on Queens Boulevard, there is a number of

          6  zoning districts significantly in the mid- '90's,

          7  this middle area of several blocks was rezoned to an

          8  R7X which is a moderate density zoning district

          9  allowing residential development from eight to 11

         10  stories at a 5 FAR. The other zoning districts on

         11  Queens Boulevard existing are C8- 1 and various

         12  lower density residential districts which contribute

         13  to the kind of uses that predominate on that.

         14                 The Department's proposal has two

         15  essential components. One is to establish lower

         16  density in contextual districts on the majority of

         17  the residential interior blocks. And the other

         18  component is to extend the existing moderate

         19  density, R7X zoning district westward and eastward

         20  to encompass the whole frontage of Queens Boulevard

         21  to 50th to 73rd Streets. The most significant change

         22  I want to point out is with regard to the lower

         23  density or contextual districts indicating in the

         24  lighter yellow areas. These are the areas to be

         25  rezoned. We are extending generally the existing R4-
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          2  1 to all the blocks that are characterized by one-

          3  and two- family homes and again, the R4- 1 changing

          4  from an R4 to a R4- 1 only allows one- and two-

          5  family homes in a district that would normally allow

          6  multiple family dwellings.

          7                 There is also that context that we're

          8  establishing around the Brooklyn Queens Expressway

          9  as well in this light yellow. The other change is

         10  indicated in these tan areas, R4B which is a

         11  contextual district and again, that allows a

         12  multiple of housing types, but limits development to

         13  one- and two- family dwellings. These areas

         14  basically are characterized by row homes presently

         15  with communal alley ways in the back. There are a

         16  number of other lower density zones that we are

         17  proposing. In particular, this R5 district which is

         18  presently R6 and the significance of that change is

         19  a significant change in the allowable FAR from the

         20  2.43 to 1.25. But there is also in the present R6

         21  district, there is no height limit and in the R5

         22  that we are proposing, there would be a height limit

         23  of 40 feet, which is more in character of those

         24  blocks there.

         25                 With regards to Queens Boulevard as I
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          2  mentioned, we're extending the existing R7X district

          3  beginning at 57th westward to 50th Street and also

          4  from 64th and 63rd Streets to the extent of the

          5  rezoning area to 73rd Street. Now the R7X has a five

          6  floor area ratio. It allows a building generally to

          7  a maximum of 125 feet. There is a street wall

          8  requirement of 60 to 85 feet after which it must set

          9  back to a maximum of 125 feet. Typically, we've seen

         10  some production in the existing zone and there are

         11  eight to 11 story buildings in that zone.

         12                 We're also extending the commercial

         13  overlay. Presently, there is a commercial overlay of

         14  a C22 in the R7 district. We are changing that to a

         15  C23 which has a different parking requirement and

         16  again the entire corridor on Queens Boulevard as

         17  proposed would be R7X C23. In your packets, there is

         18  a comparative chart of the different zones that are

         19  proposed and also at the end of these rezoning maps.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I am joined by

         21  Council Member Jackson. What I'd like to do is we

         22  have people signed up on both items. So what I would

         23  like to do if Council Members have questions now on

         24  this particular rezoning, take them. We will have

         25  them do the presentation for the other rezoning
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          2  action. Then we will take the public and then I'm

          3  actually going to ask John Young to come back

          4  because the other application has the new zoning

          5  category, R5D which has been extremely

          6  controversial. So if Council Members have anything

          7  to question about this rezoning, now would be the

          8  time to ask. Yes, no?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: I just have a

         10  question for you, Mr. Chairman. Are we correct that

         11  the new R5D is on our agenda for vote as well today?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: To be a

         14  zoning text change?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Yes. In effect,

         16  we are creating the text for that category and we're

         17  going to be mapping it in the first district as

         18  well.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But that's

         20  not in this presentation. It's in the Jamaica?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: No, it is the

         22  next one.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Okay, thank

         24  you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We'll move on to
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          2   --

          3                 MR. YOUNG: Actually, before we move,

          4  I just want to --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Go ahead, John.

          6                 MR. YOUNG: I just want to add for

          7  those who may have been following the public

          8  discussion on the Maspeth Woodside Rezoning, that at

          9  the City Planning Commission hearing there was

         10  testimony describing the opportunity that the

         11  rezoning of Queens Boulevard would create to provide

         12  affordable housing. And subsequent to that April

         13  hearing, the Department has been working closely

         14  with HPD and has proposed a zoning text amendment

         15  which is working its way to you. We will be

         16  presenting it next month. But it is utilizing the

         17  City's establish inclusionary housing zoning and it

         18  will be designating the two areas where the R7X is

         19  proposed here along Queens Boulevard to have that

         20  program applicable in it. We really see there is an

         21  opportunity here to provide new housing

         22  opportunities, but include inclusionary zoning to

         23  incentivize affordable units. At that point, we will

         24    present a full description of the text amendment.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member
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          2  Katz.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Yes, that

          4  exactly what I was going to ask you to put on the

          5  record about inclusionary zoning. And to just to

          6  note for the record that I believe it is one of the

          7  few times, although we did it in

          8  Williamsburg/Greenpoint, there were using

          9  inclusionary zoning to promote affordable housing in

         10  the City of New York. We look forward to the

         11  presentation on that and I know that the community

         12  board is very much in favor of this project. So I

         13  want to thank you for all the time and effort you

         14  put.

         15                 I share a lot of this area with my

         16  colleagues and I know that the City Planning

         17  Commission has been very responsive and I do look

         18  forward to the presentation on inclusionary zoning.

         19  I think it is a great thing we are putting into the

         20  other boroughs besides Manhattan. I think it is

         21  great that the Administration to working to make

         22  sure that the rate of return for the developers is

         23  adequate to make sure that even at the low densities

         24  that they will build affordable housing. So, we look

         25  forward to that and I thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          3  Sears.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you. I

          5  just wanted to know could you just outline from

          6  where to where on Queens Boulevard that we

          7  anticipate this affording housing?

          8                 MR. GAILIARDI: Yes. The inclusionary

          9  housing program will only be applicable in the areas

         10  to be rezoned as part of the Maspeth Woodside and

         11  there are highlighted in this maroon section. Again,

         12  it is 57th Street westward to 50th Street which is

         13  currently a C8- 1 M11 district's. And the other

         14  applicable area is from 63rd and 64th Streets to

         15  73rd Street indicating here. I can show you here. In

         16  these shaded areas, again from 57th Street to 50th

         17  Street and from 64th and 63rd Streets to 73rd

         18  Street. Again, those are the areas proposed for

         19  rezoning under the current Maspeth Woodside rezoning

         20  proposals.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. We

         22  will now move on to the presentation for Jamaica

         23  Hill/Hillcrest rezoning which is C060337 ZMQ as well

         24  as the R5D text, N060338 AZRY.

         25                 MR. HOLBROOK: Good morning. My name
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          2  is Robert Holbrook and I'm Chief Planner for

          3  Community Board 8 in Queens and I'm here to present

          4  the Jamaica Hill/Hillcrest rezoning. Again, located

          5  in Community 8 in central Queens, to orient you to

          6  the rezoning area, on the northern boundary is Union

          7  Turnpike; southern boundary is Highland Avenue;

          8  westward boundary is Parsons Boulevard; and the

          9  eastern boundary roughly 170th Street. This includes

         10  roughly 70 blocks, parts or all of 70 blocks of

         11  three communities. This include Jamaica Hill, small

         12  portion of Briarwood community and the Hillcrest

         13  community. This area is divided by the Grand Central

         14  Parkway, running through the middle of it and that

         15  also divides the Hillcrest and Jamaica Hill

         16  communities.

         17                 In 2004, the Department of City

         18  Planning undertake the Jamaica Hill Phase 1

         19  Rezoning, which you can see here on this existing

         20  zoning map as the R4A or the R3X. That was adopted

         21  and subsequently we have followed up with the

         22  Jamaica Hill Phase 2, which began last summer.

         23  Working with Jamaica Hill community, upon request of

         24  the community we've also added the Hillcrest

         25  community to this proposal so that we can most
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          2  efficiently use our resources at the same time. We

          3  are here today to move on this application.

          4                 Some other landmarks in the area as

          5  well as Grand Central Parkway which divides the area

          6  and there are several major institutions that I

          7  should point out. Although, they are not being

          8  affected by this rezoning, they definitely affect

          9  land use in the area and those are the St. Johns

         10  University which is here directly to the northeast;

         11  the Queens Hospital Center which is this big blue

         12  institutional use in the Hillcrest area and there

         13  are three high schools in Jamaica Hill; Edison,

         14  Jamaica, and Hillcrest.

         15                 The land use today as you can see the

         16  predominantly one- in two- family residential are

         17  almost exclusively. There are community facility and

         18  commercial uses along the wide corridors at 164th

         19  Street, Union Turnpike and Parsons Boulevard. Other

         20  than that, of course, the yellow represents the one-

         21  and two- family residential uses. The building type

         22  character of this is predominantly detached as well

         23  as several areas that are of mixed type, either

         24  attached or semi- attached.

         25                 The existing zoning today to the
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          2  south, there is an R5 district for a small portion

          3  in Jamaica Hill. The majority of this area is zoned

          4  R4. Two small pockets of R2 to the north in

          5  Hillcrest and very small portions of R3- 2 on Union

          6  Turnpike that are attached to the larger R3- 2 to

          7  the north. These zoning districts as shown in the

          8  previous presentation, the R5 and the R4 allow for

          9  in fill housing which provided significant bonus

         10  which can utilize to change existing single and two-

         11  family detached buildings into larger 1.35 FAR

         12  bonus.

         13                 The R4 has an existing .9 without the

         14  in fill and 1.35 with the in fill. The R2 has a .5

         15  FAR and we will go into a little bit of the details

         16  of the R2 later. The R4 definitely has been

         17  producing out of character homes. The developers has

         18  been using this in fill provision to replace the

         19  existing stable character with new housing that is

         20  out of character with the existing neighborhood.

         21                 We were approached by these

         22  communities to create some recommendations to

         23  address that concern and this is the proposal which

         24  we have created. The most significant change in this

         25  area is this R4A district which is an extension of
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          2  the existing R4A district here in Jamaica Hill. The

          3  R4A is a one- and two- family detached only home

          4  with a .9 FAR which does not allow the in fill

          5  provisions allowed on the R4.

          6                 In addition to that R4A, we are also

          7  proposing portions of R4- 1 here, R4B and R3- A

          8  contextual districts to replace those R4 in fill

          9  provisions. All those districts do not allow the in

         10  fill provisions allowed in the R4 and our proposed

         11  on those locations to the use of the character. The

         12  underlining color on this map shows the building

         13  type, the dark blue is the attached which is allowed

         14  in the R4B and medium color blue, semi- attached

         15  which is allowed under the R4- 1.

         16                 In addition to those changes, we are

         17  also proposing a change from an R2 to R2A in this

         18  eastern R2 district, the existing R2, as well as

         19  portions of the R4 to be changed to an R2A where

         20  there are single family detached houses in the

         21  predominant character of those homes. The R2A is

         22  also a single family detached home. It has a tighter

         23  envelope control that allowing only 21 feet height

         24  restricting the ability for existing stable single

         25  family homes to be replaced by large out of scale
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          2  homes in that area.

          3                 In addition to those changes, we are

          4  also proposing extensions of existing districts to

          5  match the building type and housing characteristics

          6  on several areas. We are proposing extension of the

          7  R5 along Parsons Boulevard, a one block face, the

          8  extreme southwest of this area. That's to address

          9  one large multi- family building and several other

         10  buildings that are mixed building types. We're also

         11  proposing an extension of the R3- 2 across Union

         12  Turnpike, to these buildings. As you can see from

         13  the colors on this map, the building types in that

         14  area is semi- attached and attached. The existing R2

         15  zoning on those homes makes those building not

         16  conforming. By extending the R3- 2, we are bringing

         17  those homes into conformance.

         18                 Finally, in addition to that we are

         19  also proposing a modification of the commercial

         20  overlays along 164th Street, Union Turnpike and

         21  Parsons Boulevard. Today, those overlays are mapped

         22  to a depth of 150 feet. We are reducing that to a

         23  depth of 100 feet to match the existing lots depth

         24  on those properties, restricting the ability for

         25  commercial uses to be built on the side streets that
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          2  are predominantly residential today. When we do

          3  that, we will also modify from a C1- 2 to a C1- 3,

          4  changing the parking regulations.

          5                 Finally, in an attempt to provide an

          6  appropriate location for growth, we have proposed a

          7  R5D, a new district originally along 164th Street,

          8  Union Turnpike and Parsons Boulevard. This is in

          9  order to provide an outlet for growth in this area,

         10  a relief from the development pressures that are

         11  being exerted on the interior residential

         12  neighborhoods. The R5D is a new district. We are

         13  also proposing at the same time of this application,

         14  our original proposal included a R6B on these

         15  locations.

         16                 We work closely with the community

         17  about the concerns of the R6B. In the adjacent

         18  neighborhood of Briarwood, we have an existing R6B

         19  that has been producing buildings which have waived

         20  out of all parking requirements. A residential

         21  building can be subdivided into multiple buildings

         22  and meet the waiver provisions of the R6B.

         23                 We feel this is inappropriate in this

         24  location in Hillcrest and Jamaica Hill. So we have

         25  provided this new district that has removed the
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          2  availability of the parking waiver as a higher

          3  parking requirement as 66 percent parking

          4  requirement, a very low waiver. The only buildings

          5  that would be able to waive out of this parking

          6  requirement would be two- family homes and a reduced

          7  height limitation. There is a 40 foot height

          8  limitation on the R5D.

          9                 In addition, we have included some of

         10  the quality of housing provisions of the quality

         11  housing program. In the R5D, there is a street

         12  planning requirement for every 25 feet, a new

         13  development must provide one street tree. A refuse

         14  storage requirement, any building with more than

         15  eight units must provide a location interior of the

         16  building to store refuse and recycling. A front yard

         17  planning requirement, any space in between the

         18  building and the street is required to have their

         19  front yard planted excluding the areas that are used

         20  for entrances and exits.

         21                 In your packet, there are several

         22  maps as well as a rendering of the proposed

         23  potential building under the R5D that is proposed.

         24  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Again, what I
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          2  would like to do is take questions about this

          3  particular rezoning and perhaps if you have

          4  questions about the R5D, to hold those questions off

          5  until we hear from the public. Because we do have

          6  some people testifying in opposition to the creation

          7  of the R5D district. Thank you, gentlemen. John, if

          8  you will stay around, I'm sure you will.

          9                 We will take the first public hearing

         10  on the Maspeth Woodside Rezoning. I have two

         11  speakers in favor, Jeffrey Otto and Marnie McGregor.

         12  What I'm going to do is because of the number of

         13  speakers that we have and the fact that we want to

         14  get to the public hearing, speakers other than the

         15  principals or the applicant will be limited to three

         16  minutes each. I never usually cut somebody off if it

         17  is three minutes and one second. But I do ask

         18  everybody to do sort of keep it in that time frame.

         19                 MR. OTTO: Good morning Chairman

         20  Avella and other members of the Council. My name is

         21  Jeff Otto. I am a Research Analyst and Urban Planner

         22  for the Citizens Housing and Planning Council. CHPC

         23  is a non- profit public policy research group and we

         24  have been involved in approving housing in

         25  neighborhood conditions since 1937. Our zoning
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          2  committee has followed the Maspeth Woodside proposal

          3  closely and we are here today to urge members of the

          4  Council to support this action. At the same time, we

          5  would like to draw to your attention several aspects

          6  of the proposal that might be in need of further

          7  review.

          8                 As you know, the proposed action

          9  before the Council today represents a response to

         10  community concerns over new residential development

         11  pressures that are not unique to Maspeth Woodside.

         12  Throughout the City, the perception of residents is

         13  that their neighborhoods are under attack, out of

         14  character development is threatening the very fabric

         15  that binds their communities together. This

         16  resistance springs from multiple factors, but

         17  perhaps most salient is the fact that market forces

         18  have made it difficult to ensure medium and lower

         19  density development that is aesthetically

         20  attractive, economically viable for diverse

         21  populations and attendant to existing infrastructure

         22  and service capacities.

         23                 The City is acknowledged these

         24  frustrations and has proactively intervened

         25  initiating numerous area wide rezoning actions since
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          2  January 2002. Many of these down zonings and

          3  contextual rezonings have sought to preserve and

          4  reinforce existing built forms, but in doing so have

          5  failed to create new housing opportunities. By

          6  extending higher density or moderate density R7X

          7  residential districts east and west along a 23 block

          8  stretch of Queens Boulevard, the Maspeth Woodside

          9  proposal creates providing that proposed

         10  inclusionary bonuses are fully utilized, the

         11  potential for just under 300 new residential units.

         12                 We commend the City for recognizing

         13  the need to balance community concerns with the

         14  Citywide need for new housing and we would urge that

         15  future actions seek even greater amounts of balance.

         16  When rezoning actions fail to achieve that necessary

         17  balance between these two concerns, the City risks

         18  exacerbating other problems. During the ULURP

         19  process, the Queens Community Board 2 expressed an

         20  ongoing concern over illegal occupancies.

         21                 Further limiting housing supply is

         22  likely to encourage additional illegal occupancies.

         23  While some of this can be addressed by targeted

         24  enforcement and interagency coordination, it is even

         25  more important that adequate multi- family housing
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          2  opportunities be created throughout the City. Thank

          3  you for your attention to this very important

          4  proposal and if you have any questions regarding our

          5  position, we would be happy to meet with you or

          6  staff.

          7                 MS. MCGREGOR: Good morning Chair

          8  Avella and Committee Members. My name is Marnie

          9  McGregor. I'm with the Pratt Center for Community

         10  Development. As you know, our director Brad Lander

         11  and Queens for Affordable Housing Coalition, we have

         12  been working with you through these rezonings

         13  throughout the City to ensure that the communities

         14  goals for the application of contextual zoning to

         15  prevent out of scale development, new housing and

         16  affordable housing has been part of these rezonings.

         17                 We applaud the Department of City

         18  Planning, HPD, Council Member Gioia, other Council

         19  Members that have worked to bring this which would

         20  actually be the first application of inclusionary

         21  zoning in the borough of Queens. We've all heard of

         22  the importance of affordable housing for this

         23  borough in particular. I know that the NYU Furman

         24  Center (phonetic) just released a study last week

         25  that demonstrated that Queens is in fact the most
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          2  diverse borough and suffering from over crowding and

          3  also very low vacancy rates as well as high rent

          4  burdens.

          5                 We applaud, again, the City Planning

          6  for coming up with this recommendation. We look

          7  forward to seeing the detailed specifics on the

          8  inclusionary proposal. But we really do hope that

          9  this is a prime instance of applying the

         10  inclusionary zoning model that we have seen. And we

         11  believe that the Queens Boulevard section of the

         12  Woodside Maspeth rezoning is the perfect place to

         13  apply inclusionary zoning.

         14                 We think that it could go hand in

         15  hand with meeting the other goals of the rezoning.

         16  It would not have an impact because of the

         17  downzoning on the side streets. We see that the new

         18  height caps would actually help to make sure that

         19  there is no undue burden on existing infrastructure

         20  and social services such as schools, childcare and

         21  other community facilities. And we do believe that

         22  this zoning as it will be proposed shortly to you

         23  can meet all the goals and we look forward to

         24  working with you in this area. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. If
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          2  there is no one else signed on this specific item, I

          3  will close the public hearing on it. I will now

          4  start the public hearing on the Jamaica

          5  Hill/Hillcrest rezoning. I have a number of speakers

          6  in favor and then I will take several speakers in

          7  opposition to the Land Use No. 165 which is the

          8  creation of the R5D district. First up is Samuel

          9  Rodrigues, Kevin and Jackie Forrestal.

         10                 MR. RODRIGUES: Good morning,

         11  Councilman Avella. Good morning, Councilmen. My name

         12  is Samuel Rodrigues. I'm a retired guide. I've been

         13  in this living in this community of Hillcrest for 50

         14  years. What we're trying to do is trying to preserve

         15  the way of life that we have it. We are very happy

         16  and also we support the recommendation of the

         17  downzoning. I represent Jamaica Hill area only. To

         18  give you an idea of what will be happening to our

         19  neighborhood is the best example I can give you is

         20  take this room.

         21                 You can get a real estate speculator

         22  on a builder that want to make money in a hurry. For

         23  all this room, we would be turning into at least

         24  two- family house. This is what we are facing in our

         25  neighborhood. It is totally deterioration of the
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          2  neighborhood, we plan to leave in my case -- I plan

          3  to live the rest of my life in that neighborhood. I

          4  have been living there since I came to America 50

          5  years ago. My children grew up there. We have

          6  friends. We have a community and everybody knows

          7  everybody. And now they are coming with these two-

          8  family houses and it is terrible in the traffic and

          9  the sewer system and the water and everything else.

         10                 We appreciate you are in favor of the

         11  proposition by the zoning and like I say in the

         12  previous hearing, we need these for yesterday, not

         13  for tomorrow. Please save our neighborhood. We

         14  appreciate what we are doing for this democracy.

         15  Thank you very much. I can answer a million

         16  questions if you ask me the questions.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         18                 MS. FORRESTAL: Simply said, Hillcrest

         19  Estates desperately needs downzoning. Our

         20  surrounding neighborhoods know us as the sandwich

         21  community; squeezed between Queens Hospital Center

         22  and St. John's University. Residents of this

         23  community cannot return home mid- day and expect to

         24  park. And parking challenges are increasingly

         25  presenting themselves in the overnight hours. These
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          2  challenges exist now and neither the hospital's

          3  campus nor the university's campus is yet fully

          4  developed.

          5                 The university's master plan calls

          6  for additional dormitories. Future development on

          7  the Queens Hospital Center campus may include a

          8  school and an unknown number of residences, stores,

          9  and other facilities. To compound the challenges

         10  already facing us, we have learned that Queens

         11  College may also lease dormitory housing adjacent to

         12  our community.

         13                 The increasing housing density

         14  between two mammoth institutions exacerbates an

         15  already severe problem. Rezoning a small number of

         16  blocks from R4 to R2A will make a substantial stride

         17  towards preserving our neighborhood's character and

         18  quality of life. But the rezoning of a significant

         19  number of blocks in Hillcrest Estates is merely

         20  designed to decrease housing bulk, not to reduce the

         21  number of housing units.

         22                 While we are grateful that the City

         23  Planning Commission decreased the percentage of

         24  blocks within our community being rezoned R5D, we

         25  still feel that adding R5D to Union Turnpike and
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          2  Parsons Boulevard to provide new housing units

          3  places an unfair burden on the Hillcrest Estates

          4  community, and in, particular, on the residents of

          5  the six- block area of single family detached houses

          6  zoned R2 that the R5D will impact.

          7                 One additional flaw in this rezoning

          8  proposal (as well as others Citywide) is that no

          9  zoning category exists for single family attached

         10  homes. Our neighbors who own such properties

         11  desperately want to live in a single family zone.

         12  But that is impossible under the current zoning

         13  code. Please encourage the Department of Planning to

         14  create a single family attached home category as

         15  soon as possible. The attached and semi- attached

         16  homes in our neighborhood are fairly small as single

         17  family homes; as multi- family homes, they border on

         18  inhospitable.

         19                 That being said, all flaws aside,

         20  Hillcrest Estates residents desperately want this

         21  downzoning proposal. It cannot come soon enough to

         22  please us. The attached images show some of the

         23  single- family homes that have already been

         24  demolished within existing R4 and R2 areas and the

         25  multi- family dwellings that are replacing them.
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          2  These new dwellings are tiny, some with a mere three

          3  rooms per residence. Replacing spacious yards and

          4  comfortable homes with as many units as can possibly

          5  be squeezed into a lot is simply shameful; yet our

          6  current zoning makes it possible.

          7                 I am here today to ask you today to

          8  please protect and preserve the integrity of my

          9  community's character and our quality of life by

         10  supporting contextual downzoning and the Jamaica

         11  Hill/Hillcrest rezoning. This was our first building

         12  down. They want four family houses -- two, two-

         13  family houses. This is our second one down. They

         14  want three one- family houses. These are the ones

         15  I'm speaking of, the one family houses with three

         16  rooms. A main room on the main room and two rooms

         17  upstairs. This beauty, this is the most recent one

         18  down. It's going to be three two- family houses.

         19  Thank you very much for your time.

         20                 MR. FORRESTAL: My name is Kevin

         21  Forrestal. I'm the President of Hillcrest Estates

         22  Civic Association and a member of Community Board 8.

         23  I commend the vast majority of this application. I

         24  urge its passage. It is desperately needed as Jackie

         25  just said. The rate of the development and the rush
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          2  to get concrete into the ground before any action is

          3  taken makes us sort of look away from the down sides

          4  of the R5D, which are numerous. And to gain success,

          5  sometimes you have to compromise. I think this is

          6  the case with the withdraw the 164th upzoning. We do

          7  support the application as presented.

          8                 A little bit of the process of the

          9  Civic Association was in real briefly, on February

         10  16, before the certification, we knew what the

         11  proposal was going to be. We had a general

         12  membership meeting. Notices and explanations of what

         13  was going to be presented was hand delivered to

         14  every house in the community. At that meeting, which

         15  well over 100 people attended at Queens Hospital

         16  Center, there was an unanimous belief that rezoning

         17  should go forward. We were urge to try to curtail or

         18  stop the R5D to the extent possible. But even the

         19  people who were most affected, those people who were

         20  sandwiched under the original, horseshoed in under

         21  the original proposal said, it is obvious that the

         22  downzoning is desperately needed and if we can stop

         23  the R5D, go ahead to do it even though it is going

         24  to be a four- story building next to my property.

         25                 The recertification occurred on
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          2  February 21. This was followed by a public hearing

          3  by the Community Board. Again, close to 200 people

          4  were in attendance at the auditorium at the

          5  hospital. Again, there was a unanimous vote by the

          6  committee in favor of this and to take out and

          7  rezone recommendation to modify it to take out the

          8  R5D except for one block in Jamaica Hill where that

          9  association was in favor.

         10                 The Community Board met the next week

         11  and again, unanimously, and this was the first time

         12  in my memory that a downsizing and a R2A application

         13  got an unanimous vote. There is certain groups and

         14  communities that very much oppose the R2. Even in

         15  those cases, people who were very prodevelopment

         16  voted for the upzoning and rezoning. It is for all

         17  the above reasons that we feel that this compromise

         18  is in the best interest of our community and we urge

         19  your swift approval of it. Thank you for your

         20  attention.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Just one quick

         22  question before you go. Anyone of you can answer

         23  this. If you had your druthers, would you

         24  significantly change R5D?

         25                 MR. FORRESTAL: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That's all I need

          3  to know. Council Member Katz.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Kevin and Jackie

          5  and I go back a very long way. Sometimes we're on

          6  the same side, sometimes we haven't been. But it has

          7  always been a fruitful discussion. I just want to

          8  make it clear for the record. You know that

          9  Councilman Jim Gennaro is strongly in favor of this

         10  application. I assume that you spoke to him about

         11  your concerns or his office.

         12                 MR. FORRESTAL: I have spoken with my

         13  concern and it is my agreement that he forwarded the

         14  letter in support. It was clear that if we wanted

         15  the downzoning to occur, that certain compromises

         16  and agreements had to occur and we agree to those

         17  compromises and agreements.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Since you are in

         19  the community and I'm not, I assume that time is of

         20  the essence for this downzoning. Is that the idea?

         21                 MR. FORRESTAL: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right now

         23  developers are laying the foundation. They are out

         24  there, they're working, you can't stop them.

         25                 MR. FORRESTAL: They are currently
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          2  laying their foundations despite a stop work order.

          3  Digging into Grand Central Parkway leaving the road

          4  uncovered and speed to get the thing done.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: If I'm not

          6  mistaken because my memory serves me correctly, you

          7  guys have been working on this type of rezoning for

          8  a lot of years.

          9                 MR. FORRESTAL: Yes.

         10                 MR. RODRIGUES: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: About how many?

         12                 MR. FORRESTAL: I don't know, probably

         13  about three. Since the summer, it was very

         14  difficult. Jamaica Hill was going even further. They

         15  had a phase one before.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Great, thank you

         17  very much.

         18                 MR. RODRIGUES: I would like to make a

         19  comment on that. Regardless of the R5- 2, R5,

         20  whatever it is, the buildings, okay. Do us a favor,

         21  don't delay the downzoning of this because we've

         22  been beating with tread the we don't do this or

         23  that, the other thing, then you are going to be

         24  another six months. In the meantime, every single

         25  day a nice house is being destroyed. And we hope
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          2  that you don't delay this. Regardless of how you

          3  vote it, thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Your point is

          5  made and certainly that is something that I have

          6  taken into account. I'm particular annoyed and I

          7  will mention this publicly at this point that in my

          8  opinion, City Planning has manipulated this system

          9  with the R5D category to go through with

         10  applications that is sorely needed, just for this

         11  very reason. Because you need this rezoning to go

         12  ahead quickly. If we stop the R5D, we stop your

         13  application. Certainly, we're not going to do that

         14  in difference to that community, because you are

         15  under significant development pressure. But I have

         16  to say publicly, I'm very unhappy that City Planning

         17  has manipulated this entire system to get the

         18  process, to get the R5D through. The R5D discussion

         19  isn't over yet. Thank you.

         20                 I'll go on to the next two speakers

         21  who are in favor of the application; Robert Flynn

         22  and Ed Bridged. I'm sorry. Who are you? What is your

         23  name? Sir.

         24                 MR. FLYNN: My name is Robert Flynn. I

         25  live in Hillcrest in a lovely multi- cultural middle
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          2  class neighborhood in a 20 foot wide attached house

          3  that was built in 1928. It was purchased in 1937 by

          4  my father and I have lived there since 1943, the

          5  year of my birth. It is a lovely community.

          6                 My neighbor on the left is a Turkish

          7  house painter. My neighbor on the right is a Chilean

          8  Building Superintendent. And I turned out to be a

          9  college professor because the educational system in

         10  Hillcrest is damn fine. I want to speak strongly in

         11  favor of the rezoning without going into the nuance

         12  discussion of R5D. I want to speak to the

         13  extraordinary urgency associated with getting this

         14  rezoning done. The building that Jackie referred to

         15  before, I called in yesterday to the Department of

         16  Buildings because they were breaking a stop work

         17  order. They already knew about that. They were

         18  digging a trench under the Grand Central Parkway

         19  that is causing a gross dangerous circumstance

         20  because they want to get three shoe boxes into a one

         21  lot. It is a disgrace.

         22                 We need it. We need it now. And it is

         23  not perfect. The enemy of the good, however,

         24  sometimes is the better. I don't know how to make

         25  that compromise. I would speak to a larger issue.
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          2  Not only am I impressed by and appreciative of the

          3  efforts of some people in the planning agency and

          4  their sensitivity and looking at our neighborhood, I

          5  object to the fact that they are not able to

          6  consider these other behemoth institutions like St.

          7  John's University, Queens Hospital Center and others

          8  and how they use land.

          9                 If you want to visit the sick or bury

         10  the dead, you go to Queens Hospital Center. If

         11  somebody dies, there is now Queens space to sit and

         12  think about things. The City, I thought it was us,

         13  all of us, owned that land. That land is being

         14  developed by the Health and Hospital Corporation

         15  with a sophistication of Donald Trump at a vacant

         16  lot. There is no sensitivity to the needs of the

         17  community; to the needs of green space in an

         18  environment which has three high schools I can walk

         19  to, a university I can walk to, many grammar schools

         20  that I can walk to. I think it is a disgrace that if

         21  we have all of that land and the City owns it, that

         22  the City is not obligated to make adequate use of it

         23  for the public good in terms of open space.

         24                 We need the zoning changes now. We

         25  need parking. We need better transportation. We need
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          2  it now. Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. If

          4  there is no one else signed up to speak on the

          5  Jamaica Hill/Hillcrest application, I will close the

          6  public hearing on that. And I will now take the two

          7  speakers in opposition to the creation of the R5D

          8  district; Frank, is it Porco, I can't read the

          9  handwriting and Joseph Polito, representing State

         10  Senator Jeff Klein.

         11                 MR. PORCO: Good morning, Council

         12  Members. My name is Frank Porco. I am on the Zoning

         13  and Land Use Committee of the Morris Park Community

         14  Association. We are an association of 2000

         15  homeowners. Our association alone with the community

         16  board 11 and our Councilman are adamantly opposed to

         17  the 55D (sic) zoning on Williamsbridge Road. We have

         18  attended every single meeting and requested from the

         19  City Planning Commission why are they creating a new

         20  housing zone on Williamsbridge Road.

         21                 At the present time, the zoning is a

         22  R3- 2 zone. And we have had no major overdevelopment

         23  in the last 20 years. In fact, in some of our areas,

         24  we have not had any houses knocked down in 20 years

         25  and the only development we had after requesting
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          2  five times from the City Planning Commission, how

          3  many houses were developed in our area. And exactly

          4  in the all the area that they are zoning, in our

          5  area, we had six homes developed. Two, three- family

          6  homes, two, two- family homes and two, one- family

          7  homes. We have tried to talk to the City Planning

          8  Commission, but unfortunately when we talk, they

          9  don't listen.

         10                 We asked them, you want to make this

         11  5D zone, they had the audacity to tell us that it is

         12  going to create 30 new apartments. Well, guess what,

         13  you can put 30 new apartments on 100 by 100 which is

         14  10,000 square feet. At the present time, we have

         15  such a serious parking problem which in the R3- 2

         16  zoning, you need 100 percent for parking and in the

         17  R5D, you need 66 percent. And in a R3- 2 district,

         18  which is primarily our district, you need 40 feet

         19  front and 3,800 square feet to build a house. If you

         20  create the new R5D district, you need 20 feet front

         21  and you can build four, four- stories. That's not a

         22  downzoning. That's an increase in the density in our

         23  community.

         24                 We don't have a problem like they

         25  have in the other communities. I am adamantly
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          2  opposed to the R5D zoning at this location because

          3  it is not in the best interest of our community.

          4  It's going to decrease the value of the houses in

          5  surrounding this R5D district and the community

          6  doesn't want it. We don't need it. If it's not

          7  broke, you don't need to fix it. Thank you for

          8  listening to me.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I would just say

         10  that you realize that we're not talking about the

         11  Morris Park rezoning. You were actually suppose to

         12  be commenting on the creation of the R5D district. I

         13  understand your concerns in this, but I just want to

         14  make it clear for the record that the Morris Park

         15  rezoning hasn't come to the City Council yet. We do

         16  know that it will include, as of right now, the R5D

         17  district.

         18                 MR. PORCO: Councilman Avella, I'm

         19  sorry, but I personally want to thank you for

         20  sending our association a letter to come and speak

         21  on the R5D zoning. And you are 100 percent correct

         22  when you say that the City Planning is holding us

         23  hostage. But I would like all Council Members to

         24  request from the City Planning Commission, they come

         25  here and they show you maps and they say this is the
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          2  way it is and this is what the proposal is going to

          3  be. Ask them how many new apartments it is going to

          4  create. Because they told us that it is going to

          5  create 30 new apartments. Well, guess what, you

          6  could get 30 new apartments like I told you on a 100

          7  by 100.

          8                 Furthermore, in our area right now,

          9  furthermore, we're going to get 400 apartments

         10  surrounding our area. I'll give you the locations.

         11  They are on Vauxdale and White Plains Road; they are

         12  on Antim Place (phonetic) and Vauxdale Road. And

         13  when they make the R6A down near Stillwell, you are

         14  going to get 70 apartments there. The man in Queens

         15  told you about the hospital. Well, guess what,

         16  Eistein is building hospitals for the students. You

         17  are going to get 40 more apartments over there. We

         18  have a serious parking problem and the R5D is not

         19  going to help us at all in our community. It is

         20  going to hinder us. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         22                 MR. POLITO: Good morning. My name is

         23  Joseph Polito, community liaison to State Senator

         24  Jeff Klein. Unfortunately, he is in Albany and could

         25  not attend. So I would like to proceed to read his
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          2  testimony in regards to the Indian Village and

          3  Pelham Parkway rezoning proposal.

          4                 I, along with the residents of the

          5  Morris Park community, whom I represent, are

          6  strongly opposed to the R5D zoning proposal along

          7  the six blocks fronts of Williamsbridge Road as

          8  indicated in the Indian Village/Pelham Parkway

          9  rezoning proposal. This proposed upzoning will only

         10  add to the current frustration of so many within the

         11  community. Although the intention of the proposed

         12  downzoning is to preserve the residential

         13  neighborhood, the R5D zoning proposal will act as a

         14  force against the original goal of neighborhood

         15  preservation.

         16                 The R5D rezoning plan does not take

         17  into account the already heavy congestion on

         18  Williamsbridge Road. This location is overwhelmed by

         19  both high- density traffic, as well as a lack of

         20  parking. Both problems will only increase with the

         21  influx of new residents that the R5D zoning will

         22  bring. Developers will be able to expand existing

         23  one and two story buildings to four story buildings

         24  and despite the height and parking restrictions

         25  included in the proposals, these buildings will be
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          2  developed to full capacity. This City plan permits

          3  more apartments and larger buildings, which will

          4  have a devastating impact on an area that is already

          5  overburdened.

          6                 This plan for upzoning does not take

          7  into consideration the best interest of the

          8  community, but rather the best interest of the

          9  Mayor's plan to create more affordable housing. I

         10  invite the Mayor as well as the Commissioner of City

         11  Planning to visit this community at three in the

         12  afternoon and conclude that R5D is a good plan for

         13  preserving the community.

         14                 The homeowners in this area deserve

         15  the same protections that are being afforded to

         16  other communities in order to protect and preserve

         17  their neighborhood as well as their homes. These

         18  homeowners pay the same exorbitant property taxes as

         19  the rest of the New York City residents and deserve

         20  a better proposal than one that tries to disguise an

         21  upzoning plan that would destroy their neighborhood

         22  and devalue the home they have worked so hard to

         23  afford. Thank you for your time.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions?

         25  Council Member Katz.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Maybe I am

          3  missing something. But I don't normally miss

          4  something. My understanding is this is not about the

          5  Bronx. This is about Queens. Right? And it is about

          6  the creation of a zone and whether or not that

          7  creation of this particular new zone might have

          8  either a positive or negative affect on the City. My

          9  question for both of you and I'm looking forward

         10  actually the testimony on this application in the

         11  future, but I would like to know for the record, do

         12  either one of you and you may not, have an opinion

         13  as to whether or not R5D in general as a tool for

         14  rezoning is problematic to have as a choice for

         15  other districts as well? And it may be that you do,

         16  I just would like to know that.

         17                 MR. PORCO: The R5D zoning could be

         18  used throughout the City. It definitely could be

         19  used in certain areas, which I'm not opposed to. A

         20  gentlemen came here and spoke before and he said to

         21  you that there were changing the C8 zoning and M1

         22  zone. Well, guess what, you can't build houses in an

         23  M1 zone now. In those areas where you can't build

         24  housing now and they want to say that they want to

         25  build affordable housing, they could put the R5D
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          2  zoning there and they could build housing there

          3  also.

          4                 I'm not against affordable housing.

          5  Okay. But I'll tell you one thing, I'm 71 years old

          6  and I've been hearing about affordable housing for

          7  40 years. And the only time this City ever had

          8  affordable housing was in the '50's and the '60's

          9  when we made them the Mitchell Lama's and we worked

         10  on York Street, First Avenue, Queens Boulevard and

         11  Riverdale. We worked block by block by block. The

         12  only way we are going to have affordable housing in

         13  this City is everybody has to work together the

         14  City, the State, the government and private

         15  developers. Otherwise, we're not going to have

         16  affordable housing. As the costs go up, housing goes

         17  up. But the R5D zoning could be definitely used as a

         18  tool in certain areas. I'm against this 5D because

         19  the area that the City Planning in Bronx County

         20  suggested doesn't fit.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Can you do me a

         22  favor?

         23                 MR. PORCO: Certainly.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: If I ever need

         25  anything in the City of New York, will you be on my
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          2  side? You promise? I want you on my side.

          3                 MR. PORCO: Let me say something to

          4  you. If you want me on your side, I'll be on your

          5  side.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I do think

          7  though that you should know, both of you should

          8  know, and I'm not sure you have an answer to my

          9  question, I know you are reading testimony and I

         10  appreciate that, honestly. I want you to know that

         11  there are representatives of City Planning here

         12  today. And they are listening very carefully to your

         13  passionate testimony about the Bronx and about your

         14  particular project and I know they will take it into

         15  account as we move forward over the new few weeks.

         16  It hasn't been for naught and I do appreciate that

         17  you were here. Thank you.

         18                 MR. PORCO: I would like to say one

         19  thing more if you don't mind. I want to compliment

         20  the City Planning Commission on the zoning booklet

         21  that they created. Because in all the years, this is

         22  one of the best zoning booklets that any

         23  Administration ever put out.

         24                 MR. POLITO: No further comment, thank

         25  you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm sorry. The

          3  mic wasn't on. We're having problems with our mic

          4  today. I'm going to ask John Young to come back. If

          5  there is no one else signed up to speak on the R5D

          6  text amendment, I'll close the public hearing on

          7  this. Just for some members who may not be familiar

          8  with this creation of the R5D. There are a number of

          9  applications that are in the ULURP system in the

         10  process of being approved that have this new

         11  designation. In the past, I mean from my experience,

         12  when we created a new district, City Planning has

         13  created in conjunction with discussions with the

         14  Council and it is something that the community was

         15  expecting and wanted.

         16                 This is the first time that I think,

         17  at least since we have been in office, that City

         18  Planning has created a new district and thrown it

         19  into applications where the community did not want

         20  it. And in effect, City Planning, whether you read

         21  between the lines or what has been said directly,

         22  and John you can deny it, but it is basically been

         23  said either you take the R5D or the downzoning

         24  application will be withdrawn. I find that

         25  offensive. I think that is inappropriate. But we
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          2  have two issues here today. We have one, the

          3  approval of a map where the R5D is first being

          4  designated and you have approval of the R5D

          5  designation. I think Melinda said it best, is do we

          6  really have something that we are objecting to in

          7  the new designation.

          8                 From my point of view and I'm going

          9  to throw this out to you and I'm sure you want to

         10  comment, I don't have opposition to the creation of

         11  the district, but it seems wherever you were mapping

         12  it, seems to be a problem. And the concerns that

         13  have come to my attention is that you are mapping it

         14  on commercial streets where there is a commercial

         15  overlay. One of the issues that has been brought to

         16  my attention is that although there is certain

         17  amount of parking that goes with the R5D in the

         18  residential, where it is being mapped with the

         19  commercial overlay, there is this waiver depending

         20  upon the commercial district, from 10 to 25 spots.

         21  And that's what the community is concerned about.

         22  Because there is probably going to be one story

         23  commercial and three stories residential.

         24                 The second aspect which some of the

         25  members have brought up, some of the public has
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          2  brought up today is, so far in the applications that

          3  I have seen and the one this morning is that you are

          4  now permitting a four story building which is going

          5  to face, the back of it which will face one or two

          6  stories. In some cases, one or two story, one family

          7  houses. That's an issue for certain communities. We

          8  have had discussions in the last couple of days

          9  going back and forth on this. Where are we in terms

         10  of City Planning and what accommodation can we make

         11  in this without holding up the application?

         12                 MR. YOUNG: Chair Avella, I want to

         13  respond first to a couple of the positive comments

         14  that you made that this tool is something that may

         15  indeed be appropriate if we find the right locations

         16  for it. And certainly that we all want to work

         17  together to move quickly on the applications that

         18  are before the subcommittee.

         19                 In terms of the actual process, I

         20  just want to reiterate a few points that Rob

         21  Holbrook presented in his testimony. One that this

         22  rezoning tool came out of discussions we were having

         23  with the communities and the representatives for

         24  those communities the Council representatives. When

         25  at the time, we didn't have it in the handbook, we
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          2  didn't have it. And there were problems that they

          3  were citing with the zones we were proposing. That

          4  the comparable zone had a 50 foot height limit and

          5  had this ability to subdivide and waive out of even

          6  the residential parking.

          7                 We came up with a tool that lowered

          8  the height limit to 40 feet. It came very close to

          9  the maximum height limit in the one- and two- family

         10  zones that would be adjoining at the 35 feet. And in

         11  order to prevent subdivision, we wrote in rules for

         12  this district that subdivision could not occur in

         13  the future and you would still have to provide all

         14  the requisite residential parking set at a higher

         15  rate than again the comparable zone which had a 50

         16  percent parking ratio. This has a 66 percent parking

         17  ratio. We want to make it clear that this zone is

         18  responsive in many ways to the comments that we had,

         19  but the need for it, I hope was made clear in the

         20  testimony about the population changes that are

         21  occurring and that we have to find appropriate

         22  locations to channel growth and make sure that that

         23  new development blends into the fabric where we are

         24  doing it.

         25                 As far as the commercial overlies,
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          2  that is an issue that we have been addressing

          3  through a number of zoning changes that have been

          4  brought before you. Certainly within the last year,

          5  we've made similar changes with commercial overlies

          6  in Camabra Heights, along Linden Boulevard. We did

          7  it in just most recently in Middle Village/Glendale

          8  along Metropolitan Avenue, again cutting back the

          9  depth so we don't get the side streets and changing

         10  it from C1 and C2, 3's to C1- 2, to C1- 3. And then

         11  we even did it in two rezonings in your district in

         12  College Point and Whitestone where we felt those

         13  changes would appropriately ensure that the

         14  commercial development only was local and only at

         15  the scale that the surrounding community needed.

         16                 We certainly want to work with you to

         17  make sure that if the community can work, can have

         18  new commercial development at the current rates of

         19  parking, we can try and work that into the proposal.

         20  Obviously, the current proposal is following the

         21  methods that we had for the earlier rezoning as I

         22  just explained. But we want to make sure that again,

         23  we can respond on that commercial parking ratio.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I guess, again,

         25  we're sort of in a dilemma because if we hold up the
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          2  R5D, we hold up this application. And the community

          3  wants it desperately and we understand that. So I

          4  guess what I'm asking for is a commitment from the

          5  Department of City Planning that we will sit down

          6  and really substitutively look at where the R5D is

          7  being mapped and its effect and a commitment that if

          8  we find that we need to make a follow- up corrective

          9  action that City Planning will agree to do that.

         10                 MR. YOUNG: On both points, we would

         11  commit to that, certainly.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.

         13                 MR. YOUNG: Thanks so much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         15  Helen Sears.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: First, it's

         17  good to see you and I know you have been working

         18  extensively on this. I have to preface my comments

         19  by the fact that I do believe in the necessity to

         20  downzone and I believe in the necessity to upzone,

         21  if there is such a word as that. I don't know and

         22  it's a comment of how any rezoning deals with some

         23  of the issues that City Planning cannot deal with.

         24  For instance, you may be able to do three stories in

         25  some areas, but you can't tell people how to
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          2  construct. If you've got boundaries for a lot, and

          3  by the way I'm raising the issues that are very

          4  disturbing to people.

          5                 For instance, there was a picture

          6  here that was shown and they're quite right. They

          7  had this beautiful house and then they have this.

          8  But what this is, is a mess. Now it may not be that

          9  much of a mess when it is done. How do you stop

         10  construction from taking the entire lot? Does

         11  rezoning do that, where you are smack up against the

         12  next building and hide the windows.

         13                 I can tell you that's what the

         14  frustration of communities are. They are and I don't

         15  believe and answer with me that, we need to have a

         16  zoning that stops people from going smack against up

         17  their neighbors house where they take away the

         18  windows. We need rezoning that is going to stop a

         19  building getting right down to the ground and you

         20  are taking away green spaces. We need to have

         21  something that rezoning may deal with aesthetics

         22  because people do not like what is being built. They

         23  don't like the aesthetics of it. They don't like to

         24  see the meters, the utility meters in the front.

         25  They don't want to see the trash cans in the front.

                                                            59

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 We have to be very careful about

          3  rezoning that we don't prohibit people who have been

          4  living in communities for years and years to stop

          5  them from rebuilding so their families can stay

          6  together. When you have children who are marrying

          7  and having children, these are the issues that I

          8  get. And I get the horrors of going smack and

          9  rezoning is necessary. And I happen to agree with

         10  the gentleman, because nobody has been able to tell

         11  me what affordable housing is. That word can be used

         12  very loosely to put in any kind of junky design and

         13  we see that.

         14                 My comment is really that I think the

         15  frustrations and set aside parking for a moment,

         16  because we all have that and if you want a congested

         17  area as Mr. Young knows, you just have to come into

         18  my district because you can't even walk on the

         19  sidewalk. Let alone, it takes me 40 minutes just to

         20  get out of my community going 15 blocks. I'm very

         21  aware of it. I'm cognizant of it. I have the

         22  sensitivity to it and I support it. But I have to

         23  say in no way does this rezoning deal with the

         24  overwhelming frustration of communities. I don't

         25  know how you do that. I think we need rezoning that

                                                            60

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  is going to stop smack up against and stopping and

          3  blocking windows.

          4                 I think we need rezoning to keep the

          5  greenery and that should be approached from a health

          6  care issue. I think we need the rezoning that is

          7  going to have trash cans are not a mess. No matter

          8  whether you are 40 stories or three stories. You can

          9  put a three story home or four stories in a two-

         10  story building and you can have the monstrosities

         11  that we have. I just had to say that. I think that

         12  Mr. Young should answer the question of how on earth

         13  can there be some controls over what people are

         14  really talking about.

         15                 It's one thing to keep these houses

         16  and I live in a landmark. So I'm very much aware of

         17  what the beauty of homes are and it's not where I'm

         18  not cognizant of that. But I think we're overlooking

         19  and need to deal with that and I don't know if

         20  rezoning can take that issue. Because you can put

         21  all the proper stuff in there. They may not like the

         22  aesthetics of the design. I will wrap up, thank you.

         23  But I finally had a forum before City Planning to

         24  say exactly what the frustrations of people are in

         25  addition to the parking and the tearing down of
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          2  beautiful homes. Because you know what, and you may

          3  give them the zoning, but nobody is saying how they

          4  aesthetically and architecturally build those

          5  buildings.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Helen?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

          8  thank you, Mr. Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         10  Sears, you are absolutely right. And in fact, that's

         11  what the purpose of the zoning for the future public

         12  hearing is after we get through the business item is

         13  to hear suggestions from everybody about changes we

         14  need to make. Some of the things you alluded to, I'm

         15  already working on in terms of legislation, in terms

         16  of open space and the greenery. Please and I'm also

         17  preparing legislation for an architectural review

         18  board because I agree with you especially in low

         19  density areas where some of these architects are

         20  putting up the worst horrible houses I've seen in my

         21  life. Council Member --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Just a real

         23  brief statement to add to this.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Can I just make

         25  one comment? We have two other items we still have
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          2  to do before we get to the public hearings.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: I'll be less

          4  than 24 seconds, Start the clock. I just want to

          5  thank Helen for making that wonderful speech on

          6  behalf of the people of Staten Island and I say that

          7  with tongue in cheek because those exact complaints

          8  and concerns that you raised are in your district,

          9  they are in every borough and certainly in ours as

         10  well which is what brings us here. Mr. Chairman, I

         11  urge you to consider the solution is design review

         12  and the solution is ending self- certification by

         13  architects. As we move forward to the next hearing,

         14  that's only the way to do is to have plans reviewed

         15  and designed and to end self- certification. But in

         16  any event, I got you out of answering that question,

         17  Mr. Young. So there you go.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: John, if you can

         19  give a brief answer only because we've got people

         20  waiting.

         21                 MR. YOUNG: Very briefly. We

         22  understand you have a long agenda. I always enjoy

         23  having discussions with Council Member Sears. I just

         24  want to say that we're not there on all the issues.

         25  Certainly, we will continue to work with the
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          2  subcommittee on some of the discussions coming out

          3  from the testimony that you are going to be hearing.

          4  But in terms of the R5D, I want to tell you that it

          5  is trying to be responsive on a number of those and

          6  as we create new zones, we are build in some of

          7  these issues. In terms of the green spaces, there is

          8  a planting requirement in your front yard with this

          9  new zone.

         10                 There is also a street tree planting

         11  and as Rob mentioned in the requirements, the

         12  garbage cans, there is an interior refuse storage

         13  requirement. So the garbage cans actually are being

         14  accommodated in the building instead of outside.

         15  That's all what we're trying to do with some of the

         16  new tools that we're trying to create. We'll

         17  continue to work with you on additional reform.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: In that respect,

         19  we always appreciate the cooperation of the agency.

         20  The Department of City Planning under Commissioner

         21  Amanda Burden, we've been doing revolutionary

         22  things. I just wish we had the cooperation from the

         23  other agency involved, that's the Department of

         24  Buildings.

         25                 With that, we will now move on to the
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          2  last two items so we can get to our public hearing.

          3  Next item is the Common Ground Community Residence,

          4  Land Use No. 178, C- 060277 ZSM, application by

          5  Common Ground Community Housing Development Fund

          6  Corporation for the granting of a special permit to

          7  commit the allowable community facility floor area

          8  ratio to apply to a proposed approximately 99,000

          9  square foot 12- story non- profit institution with

         10  sleeping accommodations on property located at 133

         11  Pitt Street. This is located within Council Member

         12  Gerson's district. He is in support of the

         13  application.

         14                 MS. CLARK: I'm Carol Clark. I'm

         15  Assistant Commissioner at the Department of Housing

         16  Preservation and Development. We are a co- applicant

         17  with Common Ground Community. I'm joined by David

         18  Beer who is the Director of Housing Development for

         19  the Common Ground Community who has got a statement

         20  to present on behalf of this project.

         21                 MR. BEER: Common Ground is a not-

         22  for- profit supportive housing developer. We started

         23  in 1990 and have developed over 1,700 units of

         24  supportive housing. Supportive housing is affordable

         25  housing with on site social services for a mix of
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          2  low- income, working single adults from the

          3  community and formerly homeless single adults.

          4  Common Grounds buildings include the Time Squares

          5  Residence, a 652 community facility located on West

          6  43rd Street and 8th Avenue in Manhattan and the

          7  Prince George, a 416 unit community facility

          8  supportive housing residence located on East 28th

          9  Street between Madison and Fifth Avenues. Both of

         10  these buildings are in the national register for

         11  historic places.

         12                 In December of 2004, Common Ground

         13  purchased the vacant unused Mulligan Club House

         14  (phonetic) from the Boys Club of New York. The site

         15  is located at 133 Pitt Street at the corner of East

         16  Halston. Common Grounds plans are to take down the

         17  existing structure and build a 99,000 square foot

         18  community facility with sleeping accommodations.

         19  Community facilities without sleeping accommodations

         20  in this district which is an R7- 2 are allowed to

         21  build to a maximum FAR of 6 1/2. Community

         22  facilities with sleeping accommodations in order to

         23  build to the same FAR require a special permit

         24  issued by the Planning Commission.

         25                 Our building will have a total of 263
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          2  units; 105 units will be reserved for low- income

          3  working single adults from the community; 54 units

          4  will be for our foyer (phonetic) program which is

          5  primarily youth aging out of foster care and the

          6  balance of the units are for special needs formerly

          7  homeless single adults. The buildings amenities will

          8  include 24 hour security, an attended lobby, a

          9  digital library, recreational activities, landscaped

         10  roof top terrace and a ground level garden.

         11                 Common Ground will develop the

         12  project. We also are the property manager for all of

         13  the buildings that we develop. Our service partners

         14  of the community for Center Urban Community

         15  Services, CUCS which is our partner at the Time

         16  Square and the Prince George. We are also partnering

         17  with the DOOR which is a youth serving agency

         18  affiliated with University Settlement House and they

         19  will be providing the services to the young people

         20  aging out of foster care and the foyer program.

         21  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions?

         23  Seeing none, we have one person to speak on this

         24  item. Brian, is Coole, from the Manhattan Borough

         25  President's Office. Did I pronounce it right? Cook,
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          2  now I see it.

          3                 MR. COOK: I never learn to write

          4  well. I get this constantly. The Borough President's

          5  would like to thank the Council for the opportunity

          6  to quickly speak on this item. We want to

          7  emphatically express our support specifically to the

          8  findings. We believe that the site's location next

          9  to a wide street as well as apart will reduce any

         10  impact from the additional bulk to the area. Also,

         11  we believe that this is a low traffic area or low

         12  traffic use and the inclusion of alternative

         13  transportation means such as the bike route will

         14  further reduce traffic impacts.

         15                 However, speaking beyond this, the

         16  merits of this project we believe go well behind

         17  just the findings to the special permit. The site

         18  will be 100 percent affordable to people making 60

         19  percent of their area medium income. I will provide

         20  supportive housing for people with AIDS, people with

         21  substance abuse, people with mental illness issues

         22  and Common Ground has not only a long history of

         23  providing very high quality service, but also a low

         24  turnover rate which we believe will make this

         25  population not merely a transient population
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          2  breezing through the neighborhood but rather a

          3  substantial population that will actually join the

          4  neighborhood.

          5                 To speak a little bit even further,

          6  the applicant has expressed interest in

          7  certification and the Borough President is very

          8  supportive of sustainable development. I believe geo

          9  thermal cooling reuse of exhaust systems, efficiency

         10  rooms, as well as a green roof have all been

         11  proposed, whether or not construction will

         12  inevitably they will get the money for it. To this

         13  end, we would also like to officially say that we

         14  support this enough to not simply write a

         15  recommendation or come to testify, but we are

         16  putting $500,000 in the form of a capital grant for

         17  the construction of this project assuming that the

         18  special permit gets approved.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. Any

         20  questions from committee members? Thank you. If

         21  there is no one else signed up to speak on this

         22  public hearing, I will close this item. We will move

         23  to the last item before the zoning for the future

         24  public hearing. I've been reminded to announce that

         25  if you are here for the Landmarks Subcommittee, that
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          2  has been moved to across the street at 250 Broadway

          3  at the 16th floor conference room.

          4                 The last item is the Gyro World

          5  application, 20065421 TCQ. Application by Gyro World

          6  to establish, maintain, and operate an unenclosed

          7  sidewalk cafe located at 194- 23 Northern Boulevard.

          8  I understand the owner is here. Yes? This

          9  application is located within the Chair's district,

         10  in my district. And by the way, we have a number of

         11  people from the community who are speaking in

         12  opposition to this application.

         13                 MR. GEORGOPOULOS: Good morning. The

         14  first thing, I don't speak English so good. With

         15  some of the problems left, I give the board the

         16  plans -- I'm sorry.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: What is your

         18  name?

         19                 MR. GEORGOPOULOS: I'm sorry. George

         20  Georgopoulos. I'm the owner for the Gyro World, a

         21  Stramonous Corporation (phonetic). I decided to put

         22  a cafe outside. Seven tables and 28 chairs for the

         23  outside and the side for the 195 Street. It is

         24  removable. At night time, we put it inside. The

         25  working day, we close at 10:00 and Friday and
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          2  Saturday, we close at 11:00.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I don't know if

          4  there are going to be some questions from committee

          5  members, but I have a statement. This is within my

          6  district. The community board voted against it. We

          7  do have a number of people who are going to speak in

          8  opposition. The applicant or his representative had

          9  set up a meeting with me to discuss this. They

         10  cancelled it. And until staff reached out, I had

         11  never heard from them. This is the first time I'm

         12  actually seeing the application. Sir, that is

         13  actually not the way you should proceed. You had a

         14  meeting with me to discuss your application. You

         15  cancelled it. You basically didn't call back until

         16  the City Council Land Use Staff reached out to your

         17  establishment and only then on Friday did somebody

         18  finally call. I think it shows bad cooperation on

         19  your part, at least in terms of dealing with the

         20  Council Member. Any questions from committee

         21  members? Council Member Jackson.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Good morning.

         23  Your application is for what? What is your

         24  application for?

         25                 MR. GEORGOPOULOS: The application to
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          2  put some tables and chairs outside.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: What type of

          4  business do you have?

          5                 MR. GEORGOPOULOS: I'm sorry. I have

          6  the food business, the Gyro World.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: What type of

          8  food business?

          9                 MR. GEORGOPOULOS: I cover lunch and

         10  dinner, gyro, pizza. All the food. We open up at

         11  seven days a week between 11:00 to 11:00.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And you're

         13  asking for how many chairs and how many tables?

         14                 MR. GEORGOPOULOS: Seven tables and 28

         15  chairs.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I'm trying to

         17  determine how wide is the sidewalk. Do you have a

         18  document? Do we have a briefing document on this?

         19  Where? Did you meet with the community board, sir?

         20  Did you meet with the community board?

         21                 MR. GEORGOPOULOS: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And you made

         23  a presentation to the community board? You or your

         24  representatives?

         25                 MR. GEORGOPOULOS: Representative.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: A

          3  presentation, just like you are making here now, did

          4  you make a presentation to the community board?

          5                 MR. GEORGOPOULOS: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You did?

          7                 MR. GEORGOPOULOS: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: What was

          9  their primary objection? In your opinion, what was

         10  their objection to granting or giving the green

         11  light on this project?

         12                 MR. GEORGOPOULOS: I'm sorry, I don't

         13  understand what you are saying. Sorry.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: The community

         15  board voted it down. Is that correct?

         16                 MR. GEORGOPOULOS: Yes, yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: In your

         18  opinion, you are the owner, what was the primary

         19  objection? What did they vote it down in your

         20  opinion?

         21                 MR. GEORGOPOULOS: I think, I don't

         22  know what to say, I'm sorry.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Mr. Chair, can

         24  I impart information -- I have a concern here. Sorry

         25  to interrupt you, Council Member. There is a
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          2  language barrier here. And I'm concerned that we're

          3  not going to be able to have an appropriate hearing

          4  here because Council Member Jackson's questions

          5  which are important, I don't think are coming across

          6  and vice versa. Sir, what is your native tongue?

          7                 MR. GEORGOPOULOS: My name?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: What language

          9  do you speak?

         10                 MR. GEORGOPOULOS: Greek.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Greek. Is there

         12  a way for us, Mr. Chair, for us to facilitate this

         13  dialogue perhaps maybe in a meeting maybe with a

         14  Greek interpreter because I'm concerned because when

         15  you say he cancels a meeting and doesn't call you

         16  back. I'm concerned it's more than rude or there is

         17  another answer other than being rude is that there

         18  is a barrier. If there is information otherwise,

         19  that would be helpful.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I hear what

         21  you're saying. But from a process point of view, it

         22  appears as though based on what Chair Avella has

         23  said and me speaking to the owner here, it seems as

         24  though he is doing this by his self and quite

         25  frankly, I agree with you that based on the
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          2  questions that I asked him which were not complex at

          3  all, I'm sure he understood it. But I don't know if

          4  he understood it in the context of what have you and

          5  so forth. I'm curious as to why aren't you here with

          6  someone to represent you that has experience in this

          7  area that will be able to help facilitate the goals

          8  that you are trying to achieve. I think that goes

          9  back to what you said, Eric. Anyway, I'm not going

         10  to ask anymore questions, Mr. Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: What I'd like to

         12  do is go to the public hearing on this item. Thank

         13  you, sir.

         14                 MR. GEORGOPOULOS: I'm sorry.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Robert Younger,

         16  Terri Pouymari, Leona Zimmerman.

         17                 MS. ZIMMERMAN: Good morning,

         18  Councilman Avella and the other Councilman. My name

         19  is Leona Zimmerman. I live across the street from

         20  Gyro World, Stramonous Corporation. Incidentally, he

         21  did have a representative at the community board and

         22  where was the other place, and consumer affairs. He

         23  did have a representative so they all know. He has

         24  no command of the language and he had business to

         25  bring somebody who does. But we've gone through this
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          2  twice before where he had representatives.

          3                 First of all, we are a street full of

          4  private residences and they would be directly across

          5  from us at 195 Street. The entrance to the

          6  restaurant is at the corner of Northern Boulevard

          7  and 195 Street. Now he wants to put an outdoor cafe

          8  opposite our houses which would create an invasion,

          9  first of all, of our privacy. Also, there is an

         10  increase in traffic. There has been a terrible

         11  increase in traffic and people from his restaurant

         12  have been blocking our driveways and they have been

         13  parking on our sidewalks because they have no

         14  parking space available for themselves.

         15                 This also creates more noise,

         16  pollution and it prevents -- it creates air

         17  pollution as well due to the increased of traffic.

         18  We also, as I said, parking problems and blocking

         19  our driveways and we're also afraid due to all the

         20  food that would be outdoors. We would have rats and

         21  other vermin through the neighborhood. It also will

         22  diminish our quality of our devaluation of our

         23  property and as I said, it diminishes our quality of

         24  life. I really appeal to you to turn them down and

         25  not allow the permit. Thank you very much.
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          2                 MR. YOUNGER: Hello. My name is Robert

          3  Younger. I live on 195th Street. I have lived there

          4  for 38 years. In the 38 years that I have been there

          5  at the corner establishment, there was a bar. There

          6  was a deli and now there is a Gyro. The bar and the

          7  deli didn't need outside establishment that would,

          8  what do you call it, eating. That will block the

          9  sidewalk. At the present moment, there is a no

         10  standing sign right across the Gyro. That sign is

         11  often violated by cars, trucks, garbage trucks, even

         12  police vehicles. I have not seen anybody get

         13  ticketed for parking in the no standing zone.

         14                 Very often it has limited and totally

         15  blocked access to 195th Street turning in from

         16  Northern Boulevard. This is wrong. We're suppose to

         17  have access. This is a totally residential

         18  community. It is not a business community. Having

         19  businesses on Northern Boulevard have not affected

         20  us negatively all of these years and now suddenly,

         21  this building, this establishment having food wants

         22  to expand. If he wanted to expand, he shouldn't have

         23  bought such a small restaurant in the first place.

         24  There is no place on the street for him to put

         25  tables and chairs unless he is going to block
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          2  pedestrian traffic, aside from the congestion that

          3  it will cause for our normal flow of traffic. Right

          4  now the parking on the street almost doesn't exist.

          5  Every parking spot is filled daily. Thank you.

          6  Please reject this application.

          7                 MS. POUYMARI: Thank you. Good

          8  morning, Chairman Avella and Council Members. My

          9  name is Terri Pouymari. I'm the First Vice President

         10  of the Auburndale Improvement Association. We

         11  represent almost 800 families in the area which

         12  includes an area north and south of Northern

         13  Boulevard from 162 to 207th Street; including the

         14  residence of 195th Street; the neighbors most

         15  grievously affected by a sidewalk cafe permit

         16  requested by Gyro World. Immediately to the north

         17  and the east are residences.

         18                 Since the restaurant opening, the

         19  neighbors have had to suffer severe parking

         20  congestion and illegal parking by its customers,

         21  either those dining in or pick up. On the side of

         22  the restaurant is a fire hydrant which often has

         23  parking in front of it. Granting a sidewalk permit

         24  on this residential street attacks and damages the

         25  quality of life and possible value of the
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          2  homeowner's property. If the street, which is a

          3  normal, smallish kind of street, for double parking,

          4  I mean parking on both sides, that's why I guess one

          5  side has no standing and then you get double parking

          6  for pick ups. Now you have got a problem that could

          7  be serious, unfortunately.

          8                 Although a newspaper ad says that the

          9  operation hours are 11:00 to 11:30, when the owner's

         10  representative made the presentation at Community

         11  Board 11, the proposal was 12:00 to 12:30. Power

         12  washing the sidewalks after closing, which they

         13  intend to do, may be admirable, but not between 1:00

         14  and 3:00 a.m. in the morning. The use of the

         15  sidewalk, which already holds plant pots of 12 to 15

         16  inches wide, increases the business by about 60

         17  percent which is what the representative said. There

         18  are adding 28 seats and we don't know the occupancy

         19  of the inside, but we assume because there was a

         20  reference to the need for publishing once you hit

         21  the 74, that there are 45 people inside.

         22                 The increasing by 60 percent will

         23  bring increased noise, food odors, cooking, smoke,

         24  cigarette smoke into the neighbors bedrooms and

         25  living rooms. The applicant is asking the neighbors
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          2  to subsidize his business. It is unrealistic to

          3  think that the owner/operator can control outdoor

          4  smoking, noise, level of conversation, music (even

          5  muted), blowing napkins and trash or make the

          6  patrons leave at 12:30. We know how noise travels

          7  when we hear late night conversations outside our

          8  homes in the quiet of the night. The owner gains all

          9  and there is "no pain, no gain" in exercise. He has

         10  no pain and all gain. The neighbors have all pain

         11  and no gain and we respectfully urge and request

         12  that you turn down this permit for a sidewalk cafe.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. The

         15  final two people to speak on this item is Salena Lee

         16  and Jean Huang.

         17                 MS. HUANG: Good morning, Council

         18  Member. I'm Jean Huang. I'm the resident right

         19  across the Gyro World and there is times that since

         20  the restaurant has opened, the driveway has been

         21  blocked over and over again. And there was times

         22  that I had to take my daughter to the doctor, there

         23  was a big truck blocking my driveway and the driver

         24  was sitting there eating and when I went up there to

         25  ask, who's car is blocking my driveway, none of the
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          2  restaurant members assisted me. I have to go from

          3  table to table to ask whose car is blocking my

          4  driveway. Eventually, I found the driver sitting

          5  eating there.

          6                 There are times that it is really

          7  unbearable for us especially in an urgent situation.

          8  There are times when they block our driveways, we

          9  ask them to will you please move. They show us very

         10  unruly manners and there are so many kids around

         11  there. There is a school. When they come out of the

         12  school and there are cars on two sides in a no

         13  parking zone, they can't even move. I have seen the

         14  cars when they are turning, if you not knowing the

         15  place, when they car turns from Northern Boulevard,

         16  they hit cars. I've seen so many times with that

         17  situation.

         18                 The owner doesn't see all this thing.

         19  We are the one who goes through things because we

         20  don't want to go in and tell them all this things,

         21  but we are the ones who is really affected. There is

         22  a lot of a garbage. There is tin foil, beer bottles

         23  and it is always in our driveway, cardboard boxes.

         24  Now since the restaurant and the weather is warmer,

         25  we could hear the noise. My daughters can't open the
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          2  windows because the noise is there, the fumes is

          3  there. It is dangerous to the health too. They don't

          4  have to deal with it. I have to clean up all the

          5  garbage. And we experience incidents where cars are

          6  unable to turn in.

          7                 I hope you will take this into

          8  consideration of this that we go through every day.

          9  They don't have to go through it. Like last week, my

         10  neighbor asked a driver to move. He threatened him

         11  that he is going to bring his boyfriend and take

         12  care him and the car. It is really that we deal

         13  with, not them. Not the owner because they don't see

         14  what is going on outside. I don't really want to go

         15  and tell the owner all the time and that we want to

         16  be a bad neighbor. But we are the ones dealing with

         17  the people, the customers and we are cleaning all

         18  the garbage in front of our driveways.

         19                 Sometimes in the night, I see the

         20  cars in our driveways or blocking the driveways

         21  which we don't go out because we don't go out at

         22  that time, so we don't even tell them. But there are

         23  times even last few days, I went in and I said, the

         24  cars is parked. I need somebody to get out and they

         25  were there. I hope you will take this into
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          2  consideration and I thank you very much.

          3                 MS. LEE: My name is Salena Lee. I

          4  also live across from Gyro World. I'd like to second

          5  everything that my neighbors have said. And I want

          6  to add to that by saying that since Gyro World has

          7  come in, there has been instances of vandalizing

          8  that we didn't experience before. The no standing

          9  sign, that was very important at the corner, that

         10  was something that was put in by the Department of

         11  Transportation so that cars can transverse in and

         12  out of our block. That was sign was removed when the

         13  restaurant came in and it took some time for it to

         14  be replaced.

         15                 Besides that, there was our neighbor

         16  who he politely asked a customer who was parking in

         17  his driveway to please remove his car. This customer

         18  was so irate that he threatened to vandalize that

         19  neighbor's car and came back and vandalize all of

         20  our cars. I don't understand why his business has

         21  brought in this really scary element to what was

         22  really a very peaceful, quiet neighborhood before. I

         23  worry that the addition of the sidewalk cafe which

         24  constitutes a 60 percent increase in customers is

         25  just going to add that to unruly element.
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          2                 It would probably be difficult for

          3  the owner to control what his customers do,

          4  especially in an outside setting. He plans on

          5  serving wine and beer to his customers. That has a

          6  tendency to encourage drunkenness. We certainly

          7  don't want to deal with drunken patrons outside on

          8  our sidewalks in the middle of the night. Serving

          9  wine and beer also encourages public urination. That

         10  has happened at other sidewalk cafes that were

         11  closed down much further away from our area. As a

         12  matter of fact, in the past five restaurants that

         13  have applied for sidewalk cafes have been turned

         14  down on or when they have had a sidewalk cafe

         15  operating illegally, the community has been

         16  mobilized to have those shut down because of

         17  incidents of public drunkenness and public

         18  urination, trash, parking situations, everything we

         19  have mentioned before.

         20                 We would like to nip this in the bud

         21  and not even have to go through the process of

         22  having this sidewalk cafe and then having the

         23  community have to mobilize and then shut down the

         24  problem situation. I ask that you consider all of

         25  what we have said and please deny this application.
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          2  Thank you for your attention.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. If

          4  there is no one else signed up to speak on this

          5  item, I'll close the public hearing on this matter.

          6  This is located in my district and I'm going to make

          7  a couple of quick comments and then ask Council to

          8  call the roll on all the items today. I was

          9  particularly disappointed in this applicant for

         10  failing to arrange a meeting with me to discuss this

         11  application. In addition to the people that have

         12  come forward this morning and the recommendation of

         13  the Community Board, I also received letters to my

         14  office basically all stating the same thing that you

         15  heard this morning that there have been a number of

         16  problems with the restaurant and the owner has been

         17  unable to resolve them.

         18                 My feeling has always been that when

         19  you get an application or approval for a sidewalk

         20  cafe, you're getting a public benefit and you should

         21  always be a good neighbor. In this case, the

         22  restaurant is clearly not a good neighbor. It is my

         23  recommendation that this application be turned down.

         24  If the owner wants to apply at some point in the

         25  future, I would certainly be open to that after and
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          2  only after he is more responsive to the neighborhood

          3  concerns and becomes a better neighbor. My personal

          4  opinion as Council Member for this district is I

          5  oppose the application and I ask my Council Members

          6  to support me in this regard.

          7                 With respect as Chair of the

          8  Committee, I ask the recommendation that Gyro World

          9  be denied and the other applications be approved.

         10  I'll ask Counsel to call the roll.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Avella.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Felder.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I vote aye on

         15  all. May I make just make a comment, Chair? I just

         16  wanted to say that it was interesting to listen to

         17  the testimony about the sidewalk cafe because most

         18  of the comments had much more to do with the

         19  restaurant itself than with the proposal to have a

         20  cafe outside. I think that the message is pretty

         21  clear that people who have shops or institutions if

         22  that may be that want to get variances of any sort,

         23  if they are going to take care of their properties

         24  and be considerate of their neighbors, that's a good

         25  thing. Because ultimately at some point, they may
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          2  have to come back here and have to face the question

          3  as to whether the track record has been in the past

          4  before anyone wants to talk about anything in the

          5  future. Again, I vote aye on all and that's it.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Gioia.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you. I'd

          8  like an opportunity to explain my vote. First on the

          9  Woodside Maspeth rezoning, I'm very pleased to be

         10  voting on that today. You know, we have to strike a

         11  fine balance and I think all of us on the Committee

         12  agree with that between overdevelopment which

         13  destroys the character of our neighborhoods, while

         14  at the same time creating new places for people to

         15  live and to buy homes. I know in my neighborhood and

         16  I grew up in Woodside, one of the big concerns that

         17  I have is that the middle- class is being pushed

         18  out. A cop married to a school teacher simply can't

         19  afford to buy a house in Woodside anymore.

         20                 What I think we're doing here

         21  particularly along Queens Boulevard, keep in mind

         22  this is the first time that the concept of

         23  inclusionary zoning will be used in Queens, is to

         24  create places for families that want to drop anchor

         25  and establish roots and spend 100 years like my
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          2  family has and continue to live in our neighborhood.

          3  I think that is vitally important. I'm very pleased

          4  to vote yes on those matters.

          5                 On the sidewalk cafe, it is funny

          6  thing about our Committee that we talk about at the

          7  same time we're talking about huge rezonings to deal

          8  with affordable middle- income housing crisis in the

          9  City, we also deal with the sidewalk cafe for Gyro

         10  World. But it is critically important that for those

         11  who live on the block and my heart goes out to folks

         12  who are living across from a seemingly bad neighbor.

         13  For that reason, I'll vote with the Chair and

         14  support the Chair in disapproving.

         15                 But I was disturbed to see, Mr.

         16  Chair, and I'm concerned when I see an applicant who

         17  seemingly does not understand the process or

         18  seemingly does not understand the language and while

         19  I take every witness at their word and, of course,

         20  that they are a bad neighbor and should not be

         21  approved, I'm concerned that there is an imbalance

         22  that prevents us from seeing a full story. I'd like

         23  us to endeavor to always equal that imbalance

         24  whenever possible. Thank you. And I vote yes on all.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member
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          2  Jackson.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Mr. Chair,

          4  may I be excused to explain my vote. Thank you. In

          5  listening to all of the applicants that have come in

          6  front of us today including all the witness, I vote

          7  yes on all the items with the exception of the

          8  application for tables and chairs by the applicant

          9  of the Gyro World. I'm voting yes and I'm voting no

         10  on the application -- Yes, I said yes on everything

         11  and I've voting no on Gyro World.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Do you want the

         13  sidewalk cafe or not?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: No, I said

         15  no. He said vote no on that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Right.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Councilman

         18  Jackson, this is a motion to approve everything

         19  except Gyro World. This is a motion to disapprove

         20  the sidewalk cafe.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Right, I

         22  understand that. I agree with everything that the

         23  Chair said. But I just wanted to explain my vote in

         24  respect that the owner came in front of us and in my

         25  opinion as Council Member Gioia said, it appears to
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          2  be a communication gap where he didn't, in my

          3  opinion, didn't quite clearly understand all of the

          4  questions that I was being put forward to him. It

          5  was surprising to me hearing the Chair say that it

          6  was a previous appointment which was cancelled and

          7  there was no outreach by the owner to reschedule the

          8  meeting and that staff of the City Council visited

          9  the premises. The Community Board, I understand, did

         10  not approve it. Residents have expressed here this

         11  morning that will clearly indicate that the store

         12  owner is not a good neighbor.

         13                 As a result of that, my

         14  recommendation to the owner who is still here is

         15  that you need to reconsider your application and

         16  also reconsider your relationship with your

         17  neighbors in order to be a good neighbor. I think

         18  good neighbors, whether you are a business or

         19  private property owner as far as resident, is very,

         20  very important in the neighborhood. It appears as

         21  though based on the testimony of the residents that

         22  live in the area that you as a owner are not very

         23  cooperative with them as far as community residents.

         24  So I would respectfully request that you evaluate

         25  what you are doing and how you are doing it in order
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          2  to better have a relationship with the community in

          3  which your store resides. So I vote yes on all items

          4  and I vote no to reconfirm the Chair on Gyro World.

          5  Is that okay? Is that clearly understood?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That's fine. Let

          7  me just say one more time, that's not what I was

          8  going to talk about. Before I ask Council to

          9  continue with vote, let me just say one more time so

         10  everybody understands it and for the record. Council

         11  Land Use staff went out, meet with the wife of the

         12  owner who we believe is also a co- owner, fully

         13  explained the process. She fully understood the

         14  process, could speak English fluently. Understood

         15  everything that was required. Let us just keep the

         16  record straight that the performance today was not

         17  indicative of the communications that have been made

         18  to the establishment.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Katz.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: To explain my

         21  vote, I vote aye on all. Just for the record again,

         22  rephrase what I always talk about with sidewalk

         23  cafes. Sidewalk cafes are an extremely local issue.

         24  You can't get much more of a local issue than the

         25  sidewalk cafe. And I would reiterate what Councilman

                                                            91

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  Felder said, which is that clearly restaurants and

          3  bars need to understand that they have a

          4  relationship with the community that they are in.

          5  And when it comes time to applications like this,

          6  communities are going to be very influential in

          7  determining how the outcomes are. I would send that

          8  message out to most of the bars and restaurants who

          9  have these applications for sidewalk cafes. I vote

         10  aye on all.

         11                 I want to thank the Board 8 for all

         12  the work that they did on the Jamaica Hillcrest

         13  rezoning. A good relationship with them and I know

         14  that Jim Gennaro would be pleased also at the

         15  outcome today. Thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         17  McMahon.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Aye on all.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Sears.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Permission to

         21  explain my vote. I vote aye on all. However, it

         22  seems that what we heard from the community and I

         23  agree with Councilwoman Katz that it is a very local

         24  issue. I don't even understand how an application

         25  got to the point where it did with an outdoor cafe
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          2  when all the complaints that we heard was about the

          3  communication with the community and the lack of

          4  responsiveness including to the Community Board. It

          5  seems to me that if all the complaints were taken

          6  seriously and the Community Board got involved to

          7  the point, I don't understand how it got and I think

          8  that before we entertain sidewalk cafes, a little

          9  more work should be done on whether there is just

         10  exactly how responsive the business man is to the

         11  community as a whole before we get to that point. I

         12  think we would have avoided a lot of this because I

         13  did feel he had a language barrier. Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chair.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Motion carries. All

         16  items carry, seven love except LU No. 179 which is

         17  6- 1 vote.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: No, everybody

         19  voted.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I voted yes

         21  on all items. Approving three and denying one. Yes

         22  on all. Aye on all.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: The motion carries

         24  unanimous.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Seven love.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          4  Sears. I just wanted to respond to your point which

          5  is well taken about DCA. But you should know and for

          6  the record, DCA approves every application, sidewalk

          7  application that comes before them regardless of the

          8  previous history of the owner, regardless of whether

          9  the zoning allows it or not, whether or not the

         10  application fits the criteria because they collect

         11  the fee for that. And they rely on the City Council

         12  in effect to really evaluate the application. I

         13  agree with you because DCA should do a better job

         14  before these applications even get here.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: It is such an

         16  issue that this is an enforcement issue. They talked

         17  about police, of the cars on the sidewalk. They

         18  talked about the noise, the double parking, that's

         19  all enforcement. It just goes back to some of the

         20  stuff I talked about earlier about City Planning. We

         21  can't confuse issues. There is a merchant who has a

         22  business and apparently he has been the most

         23  disruptive to the community. He has disobeyed laws

         24  and absolutely they can control their customers. I

         25  do not believe no business cannot control their
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          2  customers.

          3                 With that, that the Community Board

          4  should have enough clout that when that is denied

          5  there is enough information put before us that there

          6  is no question that this is an issue that should be

          7  denied. That didn't come that way and the testimony

          8  we're hearing is about the lack of enforcement.

          9  That's a very different issue from us having to deal

         10  with whether someone should be permitted to have an

         11  outdoor cafe. That was the point I was trying to

         12  make. Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We'll call the

         14  vote for Council Member Vann.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Vann.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye on all.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote carries eight

         18  in the affirmative, no negatives, no abstentions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. Now we

         20  will proceed with the Zoning for the Future Public

         21  Hearing. I apologize to everybody who has waited

         22  patiently for this. But you never know with my

         23  Committee how much time these items are going to

         24  take. I just ask everybody to be as brief as

         25  possible, but still get their comments in. We do
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          2  have a stated meeting at 1:30 and I do want to hear

          3  from everybody. The State meeting is on the budget.

          4  It wasn't expected when we scheduled this hearing.

          5  Ben Akselrod from Community Board 15, the District

          6  Manager, Claudia Valentino from Community Board 6 in

          7  Queens, Theresa Savo from Community Board 15 --

          8  she's not here. Okay. Raymond, he left from CIVITAS.

          9  He had to leave. Pat Dolan from the Queens Civic

         10  Congress, and Judy Stanton from Brooklyn Heights

         11  Association.

         12                 MR. AKSELROD: Good afternoon, my name

         13  is Ben Akselrod. I'm District Manager of Community

         14  Board 15 in Brooklyn. Community Board 15 has many

         15  different and diverse communities within the

         16  district and our waterfront area are inundated with

         17  construction and multi- family dwellings. Hammonds

         18  Avenue, for example, in Sheepshead Bay was once a

         19  walk way with view of the bay. Now with so many

         20  build ups on the waterfront, it is blocking the

         21  side. The reason for Community Board 15 was

         22  downzoned or it can be debatable, maybe it was

         23  really an upzoning. Many avenues were upzoned to

         24  limit construction on side streets.

         25                 Since this is a hearing for tomorrow,
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          2  we must revisit Hammonds Avenue and we revisit Coney

          3  Island Avenue, Avenue U and Kings Highway are prime

          4  jewels of commercial strips and we need to ensure

          5  that zoning that will apply to them will be a

          6  commercial zoning and there will be no incentive for

          7  residential build up. Yet, we must not confuse

          8  progress with overdevelopment. Replacing a single

          9  family dwelling with multi- family dwelling is an

         10  overdevelopment. But your modeling or increasing FAR

         11  for one- family home is progress. Thank you.

         12                 MS. DOLAN: Good morning, Councilman

         13  Avella, members of the Council. I'm Patricia Dolan.

         14  I'm Executive Vice President of the Queens Civic

         15  Congress, a coalition of more than 110 neighborhood

         16  based civic associations in the borough of Queens.

         17  Thank you for the opportunity to address some of the

         18  problems facing our neighborhoods, especially in

         19  Queens.

         20                 Over the past few years, the

         21  Department of City Planning has worked hard and with

         22  excellent effect to rezone almost 30 Queens

         23  neighborhoods. Over the past year, unfortunately,

         24  the Department's pace has diminished. There remained

         25  many neighborhoods to be studied for rezoning and
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          2  other long overdue actions for the Department to

          3  address. The continued absence of any protections in

          4  the zoning resolution for one family row houses

          5  encourages the conversion of these homes to multiple

          6  occupancy.

          7                 Recent rezonings of Middle Village,

          8  Bayside, Hillcrest/Jamaica Hill, College Point and

          9  other low- density neighborhoods will remain

         10  incomplete until a one- family occupancy row house

         11  district is adopted by the Commission and enacted by

         12  the Council. The Queens Civic Congress has proposed

         13  a draft text amendment that addresses this serious

         14  lapse in the resolution. The draft is attached to my

         15  testimony.

         16                 More than a year after adopting the

         17  R2A low density zoning, which protects mapped

         18  neighborhoods from the effects of over building, the

         19  Department of City Planning has still not addressed

         20  the same kind of lower floor loopholes in the R1 and

         21  R1- 2 zones that made the R2A rezonings necessary.

         22  It is past time for this Department to act.

         23  Exempting corner lots from yard requirements invites

         24  overdevelopment to these parcels. In some cases,

         25  property owners are razing corner houses to build
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          2  six or even eight units on a lot zoned for far lower

          3  density use.

          4                 The principal issues surrounding

          5  community facilities remain despite limited reforms

          6  adopted three years ago. The zoning resolution gives

          7  community facilities a bulk bonus of up to 100

          8  percent and encourages intrusions into the side and

          9  rear yards. And the resolution continues to permit

         10  community facilities to impose non- conforming

         11  structures, especially in residential districts,

         12  without regard to parking, shadows or quality of

         13  life. Despite promises by City Planning to revisit

         14  the concerns expressed by many civics when the

         15  community facilities reforms were adopted, no such

         16  review of those reforms has taken place. Moreover,

         17  we continue to await public discussion of proposals

         18  for community facilities in higher density

         19  districts. The Civic Congress looks forward to

         20  working with the Department of City Planning and the

         21  City Council on behalf of our neighborhoods across

         22  the City. I thank you very much.

         23                 MS. VALENTINO: Good morning. My name

         24  is Claudia Valentino and I representing the Forest

         25  Hills Community and Civic Association and also
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          2  Community Board 6 in Queens. I serve on the Zoning

          3  and Planning Committee. I want to thank Councilman

          4  Avella for convening these hearings and for your

          5  kind attention. We're well represented in Community

          6  Board 6 by Melinda Katz, which is our good fortune.

          7  I also want to thank Pat Dolan for her

          8  recommendation. The Civic Association is in strong

          9  support of that.

         10                 I'm here to speak on a very broad

         11  matter which has to do with how is review of

         12  projects working in my community. We are aware of

         13  the fact that City Council and City Planning and so

         14  on over the past number of years have come up with

         15  some striking and positive changes. We know that.

         16  There is a change in the tone of the relationship

         17  between developers now and communities. We know they

         18  are absolutely much more cooperative in terms of

         19  community review which is positive.

         20                 Nonetheless, this is how it is

         21  working. Residents when they hear that a community,

         22  residential or mixed use development is coming into

         23  their community will always come up with a classic

         24  comments which have to with the City shortage of

         25  school seats, overcrowding on subway, rail, bus and
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          2  road, lack of community or green space, lack of

          3  human scale in these projects.

          4                 The issues are plain. We know that we

          5  are battling for adequate police and fire and EMS

          6  coverage, sufficient hospital services for

          7  population at its present levels, and yet

          8  unprecedented growth is predicted for the future

          9  which is why the residential development is

         10  proceeding at such a pace. On the economic front, we

         11  know that real estate taxes have risen to a point

         12  that threaten small homeowners. Rent protections are

         13  being eroded and New York City is threatening to

         14  become a place where only the well- off can live

         15  comfortably. Here's what happens.

         16                 If you sit around a Community Board

         17  or in a Civic Association, the impacts will come in

         18  the aggregate. It will come as a result of the

         19  combination of all the projects, not just the ones

         20  before the civic and community boards, but the ones

         21  in the pipeline. And yet as we know, community

         22  boards are not permitted to conduct a review on

         23  anything but the single project that is before them.

         24  It is the ultimate catch- 22 and erodes the value of

         25  community board input. Moreover, as they attempt to
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          2  build in logical constraints or mediation as part of

          3  the discussion, the community boards are unfairly

          4  accused of tinkering or worse, horse trading

          5  perhaps, which is an unfair characterization of

          6  these negotiations.

          7                 There is a project, for example, that

          8  was reported in June 11, 2006 Metro Section of the

          9  New York Times at Brook Avenue in the South Bronx.

         10  The Bloomberg Administration has thrown that project

         11  out to creative bids, design competition. It is

         12  suppose to include green space, all kinds of

         13  mediation, all kinds of amendments, niceties let's

         14  say for the community, in advance of its building.

         15  In the planning stage, that's all being built in.

         16  And that's the model I'd like to recommend.

         17                 What I'm asking is that the City

         18  Council work immediately to develop a comprehensive

         19  urban development plan for New York so that all the

         20  things we need to make this City not just livable,

         21  but healthier and economically viable for all New

         22  Yorkers become part of the discussion for any

         23  developer considering a project in the five

         24  boroughs.

         25                 Let's not put communities and
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          2  community boards that represent them in the position

          3  of trying to close the barn door after the horse is

          4  out. Let's have planning happen where it belongs,

          5  that is, up front, and have every project respond to

          6  it. Thank you.

          7                 MS. STANTON: Hi, good afternoon. I'm

          8  Judy Stanton from the Brooklyn Heights Association

          9  where I am the Executive Director. My testimony is

         10  informal and I send you a written version in a few

         11  days. But I am here as one of a group of brownstone

         12  neighborhoods represented by their Civic

         13  Associations in Boerum Hill and Park Slope, Clinton

         14  Hill and Brooklyn Heights because we're concerned

         15  about what we're calling the Mcmansioning of row

         16  house neighborhoods in brownstone Brooklyn; where

         17  some of us enjoy a 50 foot height limit, which the

         18  case in Brooklyn Heights, the others do not. Some of

         19  us are historic districts, but bigger than others so

         20  that historic district status from the Landmarks

         21  Commission doesn't protect everybody.

         22                 To some degree, we have reviews by

         23  the Landmarks Commission on the basis of

         24  appropriateness standards which rule on rear yard

         25  additions from one to four stories. Increasingly, we
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          2  find that owners are trying to build rear yard

          3  additions of that size and the only zoning

          4  protection that we have is the 30 foot rear lot

          5  requirement as long as one is not a community

          6  facility. The community facilities raise a whole

          7  other question of being allowed to completely fill a

          8  rear yard and we have a number of a community

          9  facilities trying to do that in Brooklyn Heights.

         10                 The bulk requirements we think need

         11  to be looked at because architects are telling us

         12  that increasingly the Department of Buildings

         13  permits quality housing regulations to be applied to

         14  these four- story row houses whether they are one,

         15  two, three, or four family buildings. And according

         16  to the architects, the quality housing rules permit

         17  lot coverage of 2.2, whereas we think that really

         18  the intention is to limit the lot coverage to 1.8

         19  FAR.

         20                 We hope to engage the Department of

         21  City Planning of the Brooklyn office to work with us

         22  and trying to find what is the most satisfactory

         23  remedy even in historic districts that will require

         24  landmark commission review because we don't think

         25  we're getting enough protection and the main concern
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          2  is loss of light and air and green space. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you all for

          4  your testimony. Rest assured, we will look into

          5  every single item that you are bringing to my

          6  attention. I would mention that as Pat Dolan knows,

          7  I'm being championing the Queens Civic Congress R2B

          8  proposal for the one- family attached row houses and

          9  I've been talking to City Planing now for the last

         10  year about addressing the bulk part of the community

         11  facilities bonus. We've also spoken to the Speaker.

         12  We have these negotiations going on. I'm not happy

         13  with the progress on both items, but we are trying

         14  to move ahead. Thank you.

         15                 MS. DOLAN: Let me just add one thing

         16  and that is that the Congress is very, very

         17  concerned about the delays in certifying the

         18  rezonings in Queens. I can name two neighborhoods in

         19  particular, Queens Borough Hill and Little Neck

         20  Douglaston. Both of these areas have been promised

         21  to have their rezonings certified for months. Every

         22  time the rezoning date is almost upon them, they are

         23  told it is going to be another month or two months.

         24  These delays are unconscionable and they are costing

         25  these neighborhoods houses. This is something that
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          2  we would really appreciate the Committee addressing

          3  and addressing very strongly in the coming weeks and

          4  months.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: As you know, you

          6  and I were at a press conference --

          7                 MS. DOLAN: We were indeed.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: -- Just a couple

          9  of weeks ago in Queens where we had 20 groups

         10  standing on the steps of Borough Hall to state

         11  exactly that. And we are, I'm very dissatisfied with

         12  the progress because it is clear that the commitment

         13  from the Department of City of Planning that maybe

         14  was existing about a year and half ago and I hate to

         15  say before the election, is clearly not there now.

         16  As you mentioned, a number of rezoning actions at

         17  least that I'm aware of in Queens are maybe six

         18  months to a year behind schedule at this point.

         19                 MS. DOLAN: I would hate to think that

         20  we're going back to the bad old days where a

         21  neighborhood could wait five or six years to see a

         22  rezoning occur. Because these neighborhoods simply

         23  don't have that kind of time.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We agree.

         25                 MS. DOLAN: Nor does Kew Gardens Hill
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          2  have that kind time for its one- family zone which

          3  we desperately need.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We agree. Thanks.

          5  Next panel, Bob Furman from the Four Borough

          6  Neighborhood Alliance, Andrew Berman from the

          7  Greenwich Village Society for Historic Preservation,

          8  Linda, Preservation League of Staten Island, Eliott

          9  Socci from the Douglaston Civic Association. Bob,

         10  you want to go first?

         11                 MR. FURMAN: Yes. Hi, my name is

         12  Robert Furman. I am Chair of the Four Borough

         13  Neighborhood Preservation Alliance. I'd like to

         14  thank Councilman Avella for calling this hearing and

         15  the other Council Members for attending. The Four

         16  Borough Neighborhood Preservation Alliance is

         17  concerned with improving the City's ability to plan

         18  in order to manage issues of overdevelopment. We

         19  wish to raise five issues in zoning policy in New

         20  York City to that end. The upzoning/downzoning

         21  conflict in contextual rezonings, back yard

         22  construction limitations in brownstone districts,

         23  the Planning Department's reluctance to create

         24  additional special districts, narrow lot zonings,

         25  and special permits for house expansion in Southern
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          2  Brooklyn. Other speakers will or have addressed

          3  these issues in detail.

          4                 It is the policy of the Department of

          5  City Planning to require a complementary upzoning of

          6  large streets and/or commercial strips when

          7  contemplating a contextual rezoning of a

          8  neighborhood facing out- of- scale development. The

          9  purpose of this is to prepare for a major population

         10  increase of one- and- half million in the City over

         11  the next 20 years and to improve the City's property

         12  tax base. While we agree with this policy, there are

         13  several problems with it. First, that communities

         14  tend to follow a NIMBY policy in designating

         15  upzoning areas, and second, that upzoned areas,

         16  which are often poorer, tend to be less able to

         17  defend their interests than downzoned ones.

         18                 As an example, several years ago,

         19  Fourth Avenue in Park Slope, Brooklyn, was upzoned

         20  when the rest of the neighborhood was downzoned. The

         21  original agreement contemplated the development of

         22  affordable housing as a condition for approval, but

         23  this was dropped by the City Council. At this time,

         24  gentrification having spread down the Slope,

         25  residents find themselves facing the development of
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          2  ten to 15 story towers in an R8 zone just up the

          3  block from their three story homes.

          4                 Many 19th century townhouse

          5  neighborhoods in Brooklyn and Manhattan, whether

          6  historic districts or not, find that the zoning

          7  permits the development of most of their backyards

          8  by house extensions. This is permitted within

          9  historic districts since the extensions are

         10  invisible from the street. Neighbors find their

         11  yards and homes cast into shadows or physically

         12  overwhelmed. The yards were a wonderful feature of

         13  townhouse development that created a little bit of

         14  nature as a required amenity and they should be

         15  preserved by appropriate zoning restrictions.

         16  Regulations should be instituted to provide for some

         17  expansion while protecting neighbors right to light,

         18  air, and a feeling of space.

         19                 There are numerous special zoning

         20  districts in the City, established to support the

         21  unique aspects of communities. At this time, the

         22  Department of City Planning opposes creating any

         23  more of them, such as one to take advantage of the

         24  recreational potential of the north shore of Staten

         25  Island, and is often ignoring their requirements
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          2  where they do exist, such as in Sheepshead Bay,

          3  Brooklyn.

          4                 Narrow lot zoning and a variety of R2

          5  would cover single family homes on narrow lots. It

          6  would be for lots such as those that are common in

          7  Queens Village and other areas that are 25 to 30

          8  feet wide. A second zone would be for row houses

          9  that would be restricted to single- family use.

         10  Currently many row houses built as one- family homes

         11  have been converted. The idea for this zone came

         12  from civic leaders in Kew Gardens Hills, which is a

         13  part of Flushing.

         14                 Special permits allowed in southern

         15  Brooklyn to facilitate the expansion of existing

         16  homes are insufficiently regulated. A clause of the

         17  enabling zone resolution which is 98- 722 requires

         18  that the Board of Standards and Appeals, the

         19  permitting body, to maintain the character of the

         20  community, but it is not being enforced and the

         21  board has declined, since the resolution was enacted

         22  to 1998, to promulgate regulations to facilitate

         23  enforcement of this clause by specifying

         24  quantitative limits that would violate the clause.

         25  We urge the Council and the Department of City
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          2  Planning to address these issues. Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          5  Andrew.

          6                 MR. BERMAN: Thank you. Good

          7  afternoon, Council Members. I appreciate the

          8  opportunity to speak before you today. I'd

          9  especially like to thank subcommittee Chair, Tony

         10  Avella, for holding this hearing and for all the

         11  tremendous work you've done to protect the character

         12  of neighborhoods throughout the City.

         13                 I'm testifying this afternoon on

         14  behalf of the Greenwich Village Society for Historic

         15  Preservation, which is the largest membership

         16  organization in Greenwich Village, the East Village,

         17  the NoHo, and which works to protect the character

         18  of these neighborhoods.

         19                 The number one issue I will raise

         20  today is the need to reform the treatment of

         21  community facilities under New York City zoning. In

         22  the neighborhoods of lower Manhattan, in which I

         23  work, the as- of- right granting of a community

         24  facility bulk bonus is probably the single factor

         25  most responsible for the destruction of character of
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          2  our neighborhoods and the single greatest cause of

          3  conflict around development. Depending upon the

          4  zoning district, community facilities are allowed

          5  anywhere from a ten to 90 percent increase in

          6  allowable bulk in our neighborhoods. In a case now

          7  being fought in the East Village, this will result

          8  in a 26- story NYU dormitory on a narrow residential

          9  side street which will be the tallest building in

         10  the entire East Village.

         11                 As proof that the as- of- right bulk

         12  bonus is the cause of the problems, just around the

         13  corner another dorm is being built without using the

         14  bulk bonus to a much more modest six stories and the

         15  community is not protesting, but welcoming it with

         16  open arms. And in the West Village, a plan for a

         17  facility housing the infirmed elderly utilizing a

         18  community facility bulk bonus in an R6 zone was

         19  initially met with considerable skepticism and

         20  concern due to the size and configuration of the

         21  project.

         22                 However, in a quirk of the zoning

         23  code, a special permit is required for the community

         24  facility bulk bonus for this particular type of

         25  facility in R6 zones. As a result, the provider
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          2  negotiated changes to the design with the local

          3  community and elected officials, shifting the bulk

          4  to make it more harmonious with the surrounding

          5  block and agreeing to work on other design and

          6  quality of life issues. While not yet finalized, the

          7  revised design utilizes the full community facility

          8  bulk bonus, but due to the negotiated changes, no

          9  longer appears to engender any opposition from

         10  neighbors. As- of- right community facility

         11  developments rarely end this way or result in such a

         12  give and take.

         13                 While not every case of a special

         14  permit requirement for community facility bulk bonus

         15  would necessarily end this way, it certainly

         16  illustrates that eliminating the as- of- right

         17  element would provide the community and elected

         18  officials the opportunity to negotiate changes which

         19  could make the development more compatible with its

         20  surroundings, and if not, to refuse consent for the

         21  permit. GVSHP has long advocated for a reduction or

         22  elimination of the community facility bulk bonus,

         23  making it available by special permit only, or

         24  capping the number of such bonuses any institution

         25  can have in one community district to eliminate the
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          2  oversaturation of these super- sized facilities in

          3  one neighborhood.

          4                 In addition to bulk, we urge the City

          5  to examine the appropriateness of certain types of

          6  facilities being considered community facilities. In

          7  2004, the City Council and City Planning Commission

          8  wisely removed faculty housing from the list of

          9  community facilities. We would urge the same change

         10  for dormitories. Aside from the fact that developers

         11  in our neighborhoods are increasingly using

         12  dormitories as Trojan horses for bringing in larger

         13  than normally allowable residential development,

         14  dormitories, especially those of affluent private

         15  institutions, would hardly seem to require the bulk

         16  bonus currently afforded them, while the harm these

         17  large structures inflict upon the characters of the

         18  neighborhoods in which they are located is clear.

         19                 One other recent zoning issue we are

         20  facing is the proliferation of large hotels in M1

         21  zones, where they are allowed as- of- right. This

         22  provision is almost single handedly transforming

         23  some neighborhoods because hotel development is so

         24  much more profitable than any other kind of

         25  allowable development in the area. Thus, with no
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          2  input from local communities and no planning by the

          3  City, much of the meat packing district and SoHo are

          4  endanger of becoming hotel zones almost overnight.

          5  Worst, too frequently hotels also serve as Trojan

          6  horses to get illegal residential uses into these

          7  areas.

          8                 In 2004, GVSHP and a Citywide

          9  coalition of groups were able to get the City to

         10  overturn a Department of Buildings ruling which

         11  would have allowed a half residential, half hotel

         12  development in the meat packing district or in any

         13  M1 zone in spite of the outright prohibition against

         14  residential development in these zones. We thought

         15  this matter was settled by the 2004 ruling, but now,

         16  however, Donald Trump is seeking to play this game

         17  again announcing through his Apprentice TV show,

         18  plans to build a 45 story condo/hotel in SoHo which

         19  would in effect be made up of residential units

         20  dressed up as hotel rooms. Here too, we are urging

         21  the City not to allow such a development because of

         22  its conflict with the zoning and I have attached

         23  information about it.

         24                 I will sum up and just submit

         25  additional materials. I agree about the need for
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          2  special districts and other types of fine tuning of

          3  zoning mechanisms and I also would urge the Council

          4  to support the legislation that has been put forward

          5  about moratoriums while areas are being considered

          6  for rezoning, because we see developers rushing to

          7  get their foundations in. They are also doing it

          8  illegally by working after hours and unfortunately

          9  the City is not enforcing that as they should. Thank

         10  you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thanks, Andy.

         12  Eliott.

         13                 MR. SOCCI: Good afternoon, Mr.

         14  Chairman, members of the Committee. My name is

         15  Eliott Socci. I am President of the Douglaston Civic

         16  Association. The Douglaston Civic Association has

         17  been campaigning for many years for legislative

         18  changes to regulate community facilities and to

         19  downzone our community. It has been a long and

         20  difficult journey.

         21                 Not until this City administration

         22  and this City Council have we meet with any degree

         23  of success. As a consequence of term limits, this

         24  administration and this City Council will

         25  essentially be replaced in a few years. Therefore,
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          2  it is important that we discuss how to retain and

          3  advance the gains that we have achieved. We must

          4  realize that our opponents, that is to say the

          5  developers, are not termed limited. Another long

          6  term issue is the Department of Buildings. It is

          7  entirely possible that they will allow new zoning

          8  codes to be mangled by their interpretations and

          9  judgment or lack of judgment.

         10                 I believe that the main factors that

         11  governs the size of building must be quantified in

         12  such a way that interpretation, judgment or

         13  discretion cannot be exercised to find a way to

         14  abuse the intent of the zoning code. We do not wish

         15  to see a repetition of the process that turned 1961

         16  zoning codes into useless verbiage. I do not wish to

         17  sound as if I am opposed to all development. We all

         18  recognize the need for the development to promote

         19  economic growth in the City. What we are striving

         20  for is a balance between responsible development and

         21  the need to protect homeowners who are constantly

         22  threatened by overdevelopment.

         23                 At a higher level, we also seek to

         24  preserve the character and stability of our

         25  residential areas. It has been stated all too often,
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          2  homeowners pay a lot of taxes and they deserve

          3  protection against developers who destroy their

          4  quality of life.

          5                 In closing, I'm going to repeat

          6  something I've said to the Councilman before and let

          7  all the City administration and City Council know

          8  that our next item for the Douglaston Civic

          9  Association is to rewrite the R1- 2 zoning code.

         10  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Which is actually

         12  another item we've been working on. Linda.

         13                 MS. ESKENAS: Thank you. And thank you

         14  for this hearing, this very important hearing,

         15  Councilman. We need to have, of course, integral

         16  planning so that no government agency or private

         17  developer or entity can destroy New York's assets,

         18  our American heritage, our identity of New York,

         19  neighborhoods, our economy or the positive future of

         20  this City.

         21                 Zoning has to be used as an

         22  instrument of planning. In New York, it must be made

         23  to protect the extraordinary neighborhoods of New

         24  York, which have grown organically over a long

         25  period of time, each to be historically
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          2  aesthetically and culturally unique. These, in fact,

          3  make up the incredible attraction and identity of

          4  New York. The purpose of zoning has to be to create

          5  a high quality of life for people who are an

          6  integral part of this City, to preserve and restore

          7  our American heritage and New York historic sites.

          8                 Zoning must preserve and allow our

          9  historic sites to be restored for a positive future

         10  to be realized and for both present and future

         11  generations. There must be a continual public access

         12  also on the waterfront, which will always enhance

         13  upland areas making them economically and

         14  aesthetically attractive while allowing citizens the

         15  peace and relaxation of the waterfront and giving

         16  public waterfront views to everybody, visitors and

         17  residents.

         18                 Special Districts. Each neighborhood

         19  in New York is unique. There must be a special

         20  district to preserve each of them. And all of New

         21  York just about is a historic site. Each

         22  neighborhood should be protected by a special

         23  district which preserves not only our historic sites

         24  but the special character of the neighborhood. The

         25  operative element here is to restore, to restore
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          2  areas that have been harmed, as well as making

          3  communities environmentally safe. People should be

          4  renewed by their neighborhood or surroundings which

          5  should be safe and environmentally sound. Where

          6  there are destructive elements in a neighborhood,

          7  often caused by zoning, zoning must be used to

          8  correct these problems.

          9                 There is also a very great problem, a

         10  very tragic problem in many cases of totally

         11  residential streets having been swept up and gulped

         12  up in some manufacturing zone in the 1960's. So

         13  whole residential streets are in great hazard. They

         14  were hazards almost blown up by an explosion on

         15  Staten Island not long ago. And this has to be

         16  rectified. These people cannot go through an

         17  erroneous rezoning plan. They are such historic

         18  small streets and this has to be corrected.

         19                 The purpose, often forgotten, not by

         20  you, but often forgotten of zoning and all of this

         21  planning is to save our communities and our cities.

         22  The results can only be economic thriving and saving

         23  New York's identity. This will enhance a sense of

         24  place, of comfort, stewardship, belonging, and

         25  responsibility in every one, as well as a sense of
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          2  welcoming visitors. Visitors are incredibly

          3  attracted to New York's identity, which is what must

          4  be preserved. Special districts are the easiest and

          5  simplest way to save the unique in many

          6  neighborhoods of New York.

          7                 This is just an example. The West

          8  Brighton Historic Waterfront District. This is an

          9  extraordinary area of the waterfront on Staten

         10  Island facing the Kill Van Kull. It is on what was

         11  once an Indian foot path, one of our earliest roads,

         12  Richmond Terrace. It was one of the first

         13  settlements of human beings and the whole east

         14  coast. The historic cemeteries face the Kill Van

         15  Kull. It is a site of Native American burial ground

         16  and a American Revolution fort stood here. Civil war

         17  soldiers lay here. It is an extraordinary place and

         18  a literary enclave in the 1800's, and an

         19  abolitionist headquarters.

         20                 We have gained incredibly the North

         21  Shore Waterfront Greenbelt Park along the water's

         22  edge. The Greenway Trail lies along the water's edge

         23  which is on the right of way. The Greenway Trail

         24  would connect all of Staten Island historic

         25  institutions, for instance, Snug Harbor and the
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          2  Staten Island Institute. But it would also connect

          3  communities with their own waterfront from which

          4  they have been unnaturally severed. It would also

          5  connect them with each other and, of course, the

          6  Staten Island Ferry.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Linda, can you

          8  sum up?

          9                 MS. ESKENAS: Okay, it's almost over.

         10  The point of all this is, that protecting and

         11  restoring our American heritage and economy for

         12  future generations is this. Restoring people's

         13  neighborhoods and keeping them doesn't deplete the

         14  economy as polluters and overdevelopers do. It is

         15  builds the economy because there is the need for

         16  goods and services which of what people really want,

         17  really need. That's real economy. And protects the

         18  investment of the home, future, and high quality of

         19  life. It is what people want and it is what works.

         20  It creates a stable economy and an economy stable in

         21  any market. These magnificent New York City assets,

         22  there is just nothing more important than that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Linda --

         24                 MS. ESKENAS: Okay, I'm sorry.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Because remember,
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          2  there are other speakers after you.

          3                 MS. ESKENAS: Okay. What I'm talking

          4  about creating an environmental and economical and

          5  cultural renaissance in all our neighborhoods --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Right.

          7                 MS. ESKENAS: -- Which are now being

          8  destroyed. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You know my

         10  feeling on the fact that we don't do real planning

         11  in this City.

         12                 MS. ESKENAS: Oh, yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I think what

         14  you've basically been trying to get at is we have to

         15  revolutionize the entire planning system.

         16                 MS. ESKENAS: Absolutely.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And you know we

         18  have been working towards that goal.

         19                 MS. ESKENAS: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I will continue.

         21  And hopefully in conjunction with the Municipal Arts

         22  Society, we'll actually have some legislation that

         23  we can introduce in the future. Thank you.

         24                 MS. ESKENAS: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We have six more
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          2  speakers. Ed and Kathy from the Madison Marine Civic

          3  Association. Deborah Kaufmann from the

          4  Baltic/Butler/Douglas Streets Association, Daniel

          5  McCalla from the Four Borough Neighborhood Alliance.

          6                 MR. JAWORSKI: Edward Jaworski,

          7  Executive Vice President, Madison Marine Civic

          8  Association. Madison Marine Civic is a 22- year- old

          9  organization. We've been living in the area for 31

         10  years. And represents a neighborhood in southern

         11  Brooklyn, Community Board 15, next to Marine Park

         12  with Madison High School in the area and a little

         13  less than two miles both south of Brooklyn College

         14  and north of Sheepshead Bay. Last year, because it

         15  had no civic groups, we offered affiliation to

         16  adjacent Homecrest neighbors.

         17                 Thank you very much for this

         18  opportunity to present three suggestions for this

         19  Committee to consider. Number one, protection of

         20  back yards which we have heard a little bit about. I

         21  recall reading a news story about a year ago

         22  regarding a neighborhood in Queens that was given a

         23  new zoning, R2A. While it sounded interesting, a

         24  question always stayed in my mind. The R2A story

         25  noted side yards and front yards, but had no mention
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          2  of back yards. We have a situation in our

          3  neighborhood where back yards are under attack and

          4  as we've heard, they are also under attack in other

          5  neighborhoods like Koppell Hill and Boerum Hill.

          6                 Urban sociologists tell us that

          7  cities are designed a certain way progressing from

          8  very dense centers to less dense areas like ours

          9  falling known two fair zones. The less dense area is

         10  used to present socio and environmental amenities

         11  like green yards with trees, bushes, flowers,

         12  basketball hoops, barbecues and space, air, light,

         13  privacy and tranquility that ran behind homes from

         14  one end of the block to the other. But in my

         15  neighborhood, back yards are being attacked and

         16  replaced by the walls of extended of McMansions.

         17                 Brooklyn Borough Parks Commissioner,

         18  Joel Spiegel (phonetic) spoke at a Sheepshead Bay

         19  Plum Beach Civic meeting recently and said that

         20  there is a need to protect open spaces in the City.

         21  While he was mainly referring to parks, indeed,

         22  something must be done to protect backyards that

         23  were originally designed into community and to stop

         24  referring to them as under utilized spaces. We have

         25  some back yards in our neighborhood that are 50, 60
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          2  feet deep. People use them. They are not under

          3  utilized. We don't them used by construction

          4  equipment and dumpsters. When a box character is

          5  evaluated, don't just look at the front of the

          6  house, look behind it.

          7                 Second suggestion, protection of

          8  senior citizens. There are many seniors experiencing

          9  various pressure tactics. Some of it surely planned

         10  and bordering on insidious block busting to force

         11  them into selling their homes and moving. Some

         12  legislation is needed to protect them from such

         13  tactics. Since the statistics indicate that the

         14  people who are just now turning age 60 are the

         15  largest segment of the U.S. population; many of them

         16  in our boroughs want to remain in their homes, but

         17  are facing harassment.

         18                 On my block, 15 of my neighbors

         19  testified at a BSA hearing last year. At the

         20  conclusion of the hearing, the new incoming owner

         21  was now erecting a mansion shouted, you are all on

         22  your way out. Proposed second McMansion for the

         23  block comes up before Community Board 16 next

         24  Tuesday and that would place an elderly widow in a

         25  canyon between these two McMansions. We don't look
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          2  forward to this kind of neighborliness. We had some

          3  discussion about our neighborliness before. And the

          4  need is necessary for some legislation.

          5                 One more point. In a letter to me on

          6  September 9, 2005, Councilman Fidler wrote, in a

          7  specific answer to your questions, I have met three

          8  times with the Brooklyn office of City Planing

          9  regarding CB15 and each time requested that the

         10  Madison Marine community be downzoned.  Since I am

         11  not as familiar, as you are apparently, with special

         12  permits law that says ZR73622, my demand to City

         13  Planning is much simpler. I want the permissible as-

         14  of- right building to be reduced. I leave it to the

         15  experts that tell me how they can implement that.

         16                 I don't know what that means. I don't

         17  know if any of you can tell what this tightening up

         18  as- of- right means. How can it be done? How can it

         19  be implemented? Is it a viable idea? Councilman

         20  Avella, and Committee Members, I appreciate your

         21  attention and interest. Madison Marine Civic and I

         22  should also add, Sheepshead Bay Plum Beach Civic and

         23  Bay Improvement Group look forward to hearing from

         24  you and working with you. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. Do we
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          2  have a copy of your testimony?

          3                 MS. JAWORSKI: Good afternoon,

          4  Councilman Avella, my name is Kathy Jaworski. I am

          5  the co- op corresponding secretary of Madison Marine

          6  Civic Association/Homecrest Committee. We have an

          7  R3- 2 zoning in parts of our neighborhood as well as

          8  R5. And because of special permits 73622, detached

          9  and semi- attached houses are being enlarged and

         10  given more than the existing zoning allows. Twenty

         11  foot left in rear instead of 30 foot left in rear.

         12  We agree with the comments of the former Borough

         13  Presidents who wrote that this law would become

         14  problematic in neighborhoods.

         15                 We are here to tell you that it has

         16  become problematic. With our air, our light, our

         17  space, our privacy, our use and enjoyment of our

         18  homes. Only three and half CB's in New York City

         19  have it. The others rejected it for reasons that are

         20  detailed in the letters from the former borough

         21  presidents. We urge you to revisit special permit

         22  73622. We have spoken to the VSA about our concerns

         23  with the sizes of these new constructions and they

         24  have suggested that we address our issues with the

         25  Council for legislative changes and also go to City
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          2  Planning. We intend to do that.

          3                 I have spoken with people from

          4  Manhattan Beach, Bay Improvement Group which is in

          5  Sheepshead Bay, Plum Beach Sheepshead Bay and

          6  Homecrest to agree with what we are telling you

          7  today. Thank you very much for your time and

          8  support.

          9                 MS. KAUFMAN: Hello, Councilman Avella

         10  and other members of Council. I'm Deborah Kaufman

         11  and I'm from the border of Boerum Hill and Carroll

         12  Gardens. I'm part of three streets that were part of

         13  no neighborhood until a couple of weeks ago and

         14  we've been accepted into Carroll's Garden

         15  Neighborhood Association.

         16                 We are facing pretty much similar

         17  issues from what I am hearing today. It is about the

         18  R6 zoning in our neighborhood which allows for a

         19  fairly large FAR depending on the footprint. And

         20  right next to me, I'm facing sort of a combination

         21  of all these issues including community facilities

         22  bonus, the commercial overlay, and the R6 zone

         23  combination in a neighborhood of three and four

         24  story buildings. We're seeing proposals for 11 story

         25  buildings and in the neighborhood, there are a lot
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          2  of places where there are two and three buildings

          3  that are now being ready to be demolished to do

          4  similar construction.

          5                 I'm really new to this whole thing

          6  and I'm amazed that how much in agreement everybody

          7  I listen too and everybody I talk to is. The whole

          8  City needs to be looked at as a whole and not piece

          9  meal. It's like it has become squeaky wheel syndrome

         10  and I really feel like we need to look at all of the

         11  City so that the places where a tall building is

         12  appropriate can be found and identified so that

         13  neighborhoods that are low rise can be maintained. I

         14  just think comprehensive planning is essential.

         15  That's all I have to say.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We agree. Daniel.

         17                 MR. MCCALLA: Good morning, my name is

         18  Daniel McCalla from Fort Greene. I guess my

         19  suggestion may be old or just strange, but perhaps

         20  creating new C4 and C5 districts regarding

         21  commercial development. As you know the C6 district

         22  is usually to accommodate corporate clients. And the

         23  C6 district, it almost encourages developers to, how

         24  shall we say, to meet their budgets, to go 40

         25  stories. When I ride the LIRR and I pass towns like
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          2  Mineola or Hicksville, they have corporate

          3  headquarters and rarely do these things go above six

          4  stories, five stories.

          5                 I'm always wondering is that a

          6  specific zoning rule or do we not have enough

          7  categories in the C4 and 5 to accommodate this.

          8  Because we need to not just freak out a neighborhood

          9  when we say we are going to upzone the C6, people

         10  get scared of traffic, strain on the infrastructure.

         11  There is too much of a well, we're going to upzone

         12  the neighborhood and not care. I think this is a

         13  possible solution to open up the 4 and 5 for

         14  corporate uses, small store, smaller office uses. It

         15  is just too many examples of mixed used buildings

         16  that you have vacant space and then the City ends up

         17  subsidizing the office space. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         19                 MS. KAUFMANN: Could I e- mail you my

         20  statement?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Absolutely.

         22                 MS. KAUFMAN: Good, thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The last panel is

         24  David Gruber from the South Village Landmark

         25  Association, Mary Anne and Gary from the South
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          2  Canarsie Civic Association. I appreciate you being

          3  patient. Somebody always has to be lost.

          4                 MS. SALLUSTRO: We thank you for

          5  inviting us. We thank Robert Furman for all the Four

          6  Borough Neighborhood Preservation Alliance for

          7  helping us and we thank Helen Klein (phonetic) from

          8  Canarsie Digest for being here to cover it. And she

          9  has been very patient. I have to read this. This is

         10  Steven's letter. It is a response to an editorial

         11  about all of our efforts to try and downzone our

         12  neighborhood which is Canarsie. Canarsie is a 400

         13  year old community. We just had the Canarsie Museum

         14  and the Canarsie Historic Society give all the

         15  artifacts.

         16                 We have three council members that

         17  you should know. We have Councilman Fidler. We have

         18  Councilman Charles Barron and we have Councilman

         19  Kendall Stewart. I have to read this. This is to the

         20  editor. While you claim to take a view from the

         21  middle, your editorial in the June 8th issue of the

         22  Canarsie Courier is way over the line and clearly

         23  shows how little research was performed when you

         24  wrote your myopic, self- serving diatribe.

         25                 This is the article. The rezoning
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          2  dilemma let the professionals take over. In 2004,

          3  Mr. Fidler asked all of our civics letters for

          4  downzoning and nothing has happened. In the two

          5  months we meet you, we meet you at Mayor Markowitz,

          6  Mayor Markowitz, Borough President Markowitz's town

          7  meeting. We met Mary Palla (phonetic) from the

          8  Madison Marine and we met Robert Furman, Steven and

          9  you came to our meeting. That's our background.

         10                 We have been having meetings every

         11  month, twice a month and this is what he wrote.

         12  Number one, First I want to make you aware that

         13  civic organizations from across the City, including

         14  people from Canarsie, were taught the intricacies of

         15  zoning when they were invited to participate in a

         16  zoning seminar and were also provided with City

         17  manuals so that they could participate in the

         18  process of rezoning. We did that at the Sarah J.

         19  Hale in the early '90's. We think 1994 with Borough

         20  President Golden. We will be 14 years old coming

         21  this November.

         22                 Second, as the editor of a local

         23  newspaper, I'm sure you aware that the issue of

         24  overdevelopment is not limited to Canarsie. It is a

         25  Citywide concern with neighborhoods from Bensonhurst
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          2  to Willets Point under attack by developers who are

          3  often working in conjunction with City agencies and

          4  the Mayor to redevelop low population, low density

          5  communities in the image of high- rise Manhattan.

          6                 Third, your negative comments about a

          7  self- proclaimed zoning specialist from Queens and

          8  he is referring to Robert Furman, the Four Borough

          9  Neighborhood Alliance who lives in Brooklyn. And the

         10  student volunteers were totally inappropriate.

         11  Instead of belittling their expertise, a little

         12  research might have provided you with some

         13  background information. Concerned citizens, civic

         14  organizations, historic preservation groups and

         15  elected officials from across the City are united in

         16  the struggle to rezone and to protect the

         17  communities from developers.

         18                 The Four Borough Neighborhood

         19  Preservation Alliance and volunteers from the

         20  Municipal Arts Society are cutting through this fog

         21  and deception and starting to get things done. If

         22  you look beyond the borders of Canarsie, you might

         23  have realized that this team played a role in a

         24  recent rezoning of a part of Plum Beach and

         25  Sheepshead Bay where much of its waterfront, fishing
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          2  village character has been destroyed and replaced by

          3  shopping malls and boxy high rise apartment

          4  buildings.

          5                 Canarsie is under attack by these

          6  developers. The signs that pepper our neighborhood

          7  from illegally placed placards on electric poles to

          8  massive billboards plastered on the sides of

          9  buildings clearly document the land grab now

         10  occurring here. These developers do not care about

         11  Canarsie or any other neighborhood. Their only plan

         12  is to reap profits. The City also benefits from this

         13  land grab with increased jobs, taxes, and fees.

         14  While this is occurring, who is watching out for the

         15  residents, the homeowners, and their quality of

         16  their life?

         17                 With regard to your inappropriate

         18  comments about a Councilman from Queens, which is

         19  Councilman Tony Avella, if you conducted any

         20  research you would have discovered that the reason

         21  people from across the City are working with him is

         22  because he is the Chair of Zoning and Franchises;

         23  introduced legislation and is writing additional

         24  legislation to help protect neighborhoods from

         25  wanton destruction through greed.
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          2                 This is the best one. I told Steve

          3  all I wanted to do is read the last paragraph.

          4  Canarsie civic organizations turned to the Four

          5  Borough Neighborhood Alliance elected officials that

          6  appear to care about the future of the City and its

          7  communities because our own elected officials thus

          8  far have done nothing substantial to help protect

          9  Canarsie. They were willing to give lip service to

         10  the fight to limit overdevelopment when it was just

         11  a dream. Now that legislation is gaining support,

         12  where are they? History teaches us that Nero fiddled

         13  while Rome burned.

         14                 We point out that we did get a

         15  response from Amanda Burden. I just got it yesterday

         16  that she is going, as soon time permits, I'm going

         17  to hand the letter to you. She will refer us to City

         18  Planning. And Mr. Fidler also got back to us that

         19  there is someone named Reeves Isen (phonetic) that

         20  he is busy with the budget now, but he will meet

         21  with us in July. Again, he wants to document that

         22  the civics are still wanting downzoning. They all

         23  wrote letters in 2004. We called them and pulled for

         24  our May 1. I spoke to many of them now for this

         25  meeting. Please stop stalling us. And thank you
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          2  again.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I think the

          4  bottom line, Mary Anne, if I can sum up what you

          5  said is you have asked for a downzoning and you

          6  still don't know what the status is. And you are in

          7  effect asking for the Committee's help.

          8                 MS. SALLUSTRO: You've got to speak to

          9  them, yes. You have too.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That's what I

         11  want you to say on the record.

         12                 MS. SALLUSTRO: You have too. We're in

         13  south Canarsie and we represent all Canarsie Avenue,

         14  the Canarsie Shoreline, East 108th to Ralph. They

         15  work. They give me testimony. We're so sick of it.

         16  Please.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay, got it.

         18                 MS. SALLUSTRO: Gary will read

         19  something.

         20                 MR. MARRONE: I don't want to read all

         21  of this, Mary.

         22                 MS. SALLUSTRO: Just read it, Gary.

         23                 MR. MARRONE: No, I'm not going to

         24  read it. I'm just going to say that Mary Anne is the

         25  President of the South Canarsie --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We can't hear

          3  you. You are going to have to turn the mic on.

          4                 MR. MARRONE: Mary Anne is the

          5  President of the South Canarsie Civic Association.

          6  I'm the Treasurer. But anyway, I'm going to make it

          7  short because we are all tired. Anyway, she is very

          8  active and very interested in all this and I am as

          9  well. But the thing, this letter that she wrote to

         10  Mr. Winston Von Engel and it talks about what we

         11  have been talking about all day. About the new

         12  contextual zoning and all of that. That's all he

         13  wrote to her and told her he is aware of it and all

         14  that and is doing something about it and so on. She

         15  just told you about that she just received from

         16  Amanda Burden telling her that she is appreciated

         17  that she is interested in all of this and she is

         18  going to do something about it. That's it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The Committee

         20  will certainly look into where it is.

         21                 MR. MARRONE: I know that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Sir.

         23                 MR. GRUBER: Thank you very much. And

         24  thank you for these hearings, Council Member Avella.

         25  I'm David Gruber. I wear a few hats. I am President
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          2  of the South Village Landmark Association. I'm on

          3  the Zoning Committee of CB2. I'm President of the

          4  Carmine Street Block Association. But interestingly

          5  enough, I am also professionally a real estate

          6  developer, an active real estate developer. And I'm

          7  here to speak about your legislation for the BSA,

          8  which no one has mentioned today. What's that?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: It's interesting

         10  nobody mentioned that.

         11                 MR. GRUBER: It's very interesting. I

         12  want to tell you that I am a very, very strong

         13  supporter of this legislation. I know both sides of

         14  it as being a developer. As you well know, the BSA

         15  in prior years has become the primary zoning agency

         16  for Land Use development. It has gotten a little

         17  better now. In this Administration, however, it

         18  could revert back to that situation at any time.

         19                 Your proposed legislation is

         20  monumentally important because there is a need for

         21  the BSA obviously. My background is, I also have a

         22  master's degree in City Planning. I worked at the

         23  Planning Commission and know well the workings and

         24  relationship of the BSA to CPC. However, when the

         25  BSA gets out of line, as you well know, recourse by
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          2  our elected officials are non- existent. The only

          3  way a community could persevere is to take a costly

          4  and prolonged Article 78. I wanted to tell that you

          5  that there is much support in the community for this

          6  legislation.

          7                 I just want to say two things about

          8  it. One is your proposal to increase the membership

          9  to 13 makes great sense. It mirrors the planning

         10  commission appointee process. Since the Borough

         11  Presidents do have mandated in the City charter for

         12  Land Use review and planning, it made no sense

         13  during the charter revisions and creation of the new

         14  City charter to put them simply on the CPC and not

         15  putting them on BSA or for that matter, Landmarks,

         16  or for that matter, the Arts Commission, which has

         17  great sway over Land Use issues in the City.

         18  Hopefully this is the first step in a process that

         19  will bring our elected officials to have some

         20  representation, not violating the one man, one vote

         21  issue that did away with the Board of Estimate

         22  initially. But will put people that have a mandate

         23  for Land Use on these committees.

         24                 The other point is and I have some

         25  concern about this is your request to have the City
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          2  Council call up BSA decisions. Councilman Avella, as

          3  you well know, there is controversy over that

          4  whether a legislative body can in fact call up a

          5  decision of what has been considered a judicial body

          6  and I think that might be a problem. I want to

          7  suggest to you and to your Committee, perhaps

          8  modifying your legislation to have you review

          9  instead of making a judgment and I wrote this

         10  recently and you may have read it in a newspaper.

         11  Instead of having you rule on a decision, perhaps

         12  your legislation could ask that the City Council

         13  have the right to review the findings and to in fact

         14  certify the findings to be accurate and legitimate.

         15                 The findings are the legs of the

         16  table for the BSA decisions. Often they are bogus.

         17  Often they are molded and modeled so a developer

         18  could best present his case to the BSA for hardships

         19  and in fact, any kind of investigations into the

         20  hearings will find that they are full of holes and

         21  misrepresented. Not all, by many. And I'm wondering

         22  if you have the ability to review those findings

         23  rather than call up a decision. Might not that

         24  accomplish the intentive spirit of this wonderful

         25  legislation that you are proposing.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well, I thank you

          3  for your comments. The legislation in effect, I

          4  would authorize the City Council to call up the

          5  action would be to review the findings.

          6                 MR. GRUBER: Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: So I think it

          8  does what you want. In effect, even if we got this

          9  power and we overturned the decision, we could only

         10  overturn the decision is BSA violated its own

         11  findings.

         12                 MR. GRUBER: Right. So rather than the

         13  decision itself, but the findings.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Right.

         15                 MR. GRUBER: That's what I wanted to

         16  make sure that everybody was on the page I'm at to

         17  avoid the, I don't know if it is a constitutional

         18  issue, but certainly --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: It is.

         20                 MR. GRUBER: -- It would be a

         21  constitutional issue. Be it known, Councilman, there

         22  is great support and it is a courageous piece of

         23  legislation on your part.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. I

         25  would also mention that with the two new pieces of

                                                            142

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  legislation expanding the membership of BSA and the

          3  two thirds vote, this has been done in cooperation

          4  with the Four Borough Neighborhood Alliance. We are

          5  working together with a number of groups to get this

          6  through and improve this situation. Thank you. I

          7  want to thank everybody who hang around to testify.

          8  I also want to thank Council Member Felder for

          9  sitting through the day's agenda and sitting through

         10  the public hearing. Council Felder.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you for

         12  the thank you. First of all, to the Chair, I think

         13  it is really miraculous. Not only the dedication and

         14  the passion, but the perseverance about all the

         15  zoning issues that you have taken on while you are

         16  here. There has been discussion earlier about term

         17  limits. I know that Councilman Avella is determined

         18  to be the next Mayor and if God decides that should

         19  be, that we will be very lucky. But for those of us

         20  that will not be the Mayor, those people that are

         21  concerned about changes, some of the positive

         22  changes that have taken place and making sure that

         23  they are complete, I'm not taking position publicly

         24  about extending term limits. But since you are very

         25  excited about making sure some of those changes
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          2  continue, you can do everything you want to voice

          3  your support to elected officials and Council

          4  Members, whether you would like to extend term

          5  limits for one term or more.

          6                 Having said that, I just want to

          7  mention a few points about the hearings today. First

          8  of all, please forgive me for repeating and praising

          9  you on that notification issue. If we're going to

         10  make zoning changes, I think that the City should be

         11  obligated to notify every property owner in an area

         12  that is going to be  any sort of zoning changes

         13  made. The City notifies or suppose notify voters,

         14  where they go vote. We, City Council Members, use

         15  tax dollars to send you our newsletter and tell you

         16  how wonderful we are.

         17                 I think at a minimum the City should

         18  be compelled to tell property owners that not only

         19  do we send you tax bills and know how to find you

         20  then, we know how to find you when we are proposing

         21  to make some sort of change that may either or

         22  increase or decrease the value of your homes and

         23  people should be able to participate with knowledge

         24  about any changes.

         25                 Two, I would say that there is really
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          2  no councilmanic districts that are really exactly

          3  alike and even within the districts, the

          4  neighborhoods are so different. What works in one

          5  part of the district doesn't work in the other part

          6  of the district and with the zoning changes that are

          7  proposed, I would appreciate certainly early on

          8  instead of when it gets close to it and then

          9  suddenly people start calling and saying, oh, one

         10  minute, you're voting tomorrow on something. If

         11  we're talking about notifying people, I would like

         12  to take the opportunity and I'm making an official

         13  request to be able to have time maybe go through my

         14  district and I assume other Council Members may like

         15  the same thing and just pick in the district

         16  different examples of how any change that is being

         17  proposed what the affect would be so that we can be

         18  more knowledgeable.

         19                 If the City is not prepared to send

         20  out notifications, at least we can do a mailing and

         21  say, hey, if you live in this part of the

         22  neighborhood, this is what the proposal is. And then

         23  let's see if we get any response so that I myself, I

         24  think most of the witnesses, for me, understand the

         25  proposed changes better than I do I would say at
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          2  this point. I'd really like to understand it a lot

          3  more.

          4                 It's not much more. I'm sorry. I know

          5  that he was very polite. He said, I know you are

          6  tired. But you know, now I'm not tired while I'm

          7  talking. The other two points is that there is one

          8  part of the zoning that I'm not sure at this time

          9  whether it makes sense. And I'm not sure I got it

         10  right, which is somebody who is doing development

         11  gets his foundation in time, he can finish his

         12  project. If somebody owns a home in the same area,

         13  even if they get a building permit, I was told by

         14  Council staff, even if he has a building permit, to

         15  do a renovation that would not be in compliance with

         16  the change, unless that renovation is complete,

         17  they're stuck. Now that is somewhat bizarre.

         18                 Can I just finish and then I'll shut

         19  up? And the other --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I wanted to

         21  respond.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Oh, I'm sorry.

         23  I don't think that is fair. In other words, if a

         24  developer comes in, gets his cement and he can build

         25  a four- six story building. But if you own a home in
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          2  the same neighborhood, even if you had a building

          3  permit, if you did not complete all the work, you're

          4  stuck. That doesn't seem fair. It doesn't seem fair.

          5  And finally, the issue about general about the

          6  zoning changes, I don't think enough is being done

          7  by City Planning to take into consideration the

          8  impact on transportation. They do something, but its

          9  not enough.

         10                 But on sewers, forget it. I know in

         11  the areas that I represent, there are houses that

         12  are in compliance and everything, we get complaints

         13  all the time in the office about sewers backing up

         14  and the response from the agencies, what do you

         15  want. You put up buildings, a three story home where

         16  there once a small story. Who gave them permission

         17  to put up a three story home? I would request that

         18  as part of the zoning, whatever changes, I think

         19  that we have to be under your leadership, a lot more

         20  diligent. I thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         22  Councilman. Let me respond. All the points you

         23  mentioned are very interesting. I'll take the latter

         24  first. The City does not look at the burden on the

         25  infrastructure when it approves these developments.
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          2  You bring up a very good point because the sewers is

          3  a good example. Where let's say an apartment

          4  building goes up, but the sewer has not been

          5  upgraded and immediately everybody has problems. And

          6  who foots the bill, you and I as tax payers do.

          7                 I'm not so sure the resolution of

          8  that is within the zoning code as opposed to the

          9  building code. It should be the responsibility of

         10  the Department of Buildings when they issue that

         11  building permit, has DEP reviewed this. Does the

         12  developer have to do an improvement to the sewer

         13  system in order to get approval for the building?

         14  That is something we clearly have to do and I'm glad

         15  you reminded me about that. Because that's another

         16  conversation that I have to have with Buildings.

         17                 In reference to the two other issues

         18  you mentioned about the notification, I have been

         19  fighting on this. The Administration finally

         20  acknowledges, shall I say, the issue and they are

         21  working out the details by which in the future

         22  whenever there is a rezoning application, the City

         23  will officially notify the homeowners in that area.

         24  The third issue was and I'm forgetting what the

         25  third issue was. Right, the vesting.
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          2                 This is something that has come up

          3  because of all the rezonings that we have been doing

          4  that there has been this inequity between a new

          5  building, which for the most part is a developer

          6  putting up, and a homeowner doing an alteration.

          7  With the new building, in other words, you demolish

          8  the old building and you put up a complete new

          9  building, all you have to do is get the foundation

         10  in to vest under the old zoning. In other words, to

         11  build under the old zoning.

         12                 With a homeowner, with an alteration

         13  permit, the inequity is that you have to have the

         14  alteration almost 100 percent complete. This came

         15  out as I said in some of the rezonings. We had a

         16  situation in my district where a homeowner was

         17  actually issued a stop work order because they

         18  didn't do the kitchen cabinets as part of the

         19  alteration. The Department of Buildings backed off

         20  on that, but it is something that I immediately

         21  brought to the Administration and I'm hopeful that

         22  in the Douglaston Little Neck rezoning, which

         23  unfortunately is behind schedule, in no part thanks

         24  to City Planning, that will include language for the

         25  first time eliminating that inequity and for that
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          2  point on, it will be in every rezoning that occurs.

          3                 What I suggested the City Planning

          4  and the Buildings Department and the Mayor's Office

          5  and they have agreed is that as long as the framing

          6  is up for the alteration, that being the rule of

          7  thumb and I think they are going along with that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: A quick

          9  question. In other words, your suggestion is that it

         10  should be similar to the foundation.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: If they have a

         13  framing up, it is like they did something

         14  substantial.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Right, correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: That sounds

         17  great. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I believe they

         19  are going to go along with that. Hopefully, that

         20  will be in the Douglaston Little Neck rezoning. I

         21  want to thank everybody for coming out. This closes

         22  this meeting on the Subcommittee on Zoning and

         23  Franchises.

         24                 (Meeting adjourned)

         25                 (Following written testimony was read
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          2  into the record)

          3

          4  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF

          5  RAYMOND PLUMEY

          6  CIVITAS CITIZENS, INC.

          7

          8                 My name is Raymond Plumey, FAIA, and

          9  I am an architect, preservationist, City planner,

         10  community activist, educator, resident and

         11  businessman of East Harlem and board of directors

         12  member and Chair of the zoning committee of CIVITAS

         13  Citizens, Inc. The catchment area for CIVITAS, Inc.

         14  Is Community Boards 8 and 11, the Upper East Side

         15  and East Harlem. I am also a adjunct assistant

         16  professor at the New York University School of

         17  Continuing and Professional Studies, where I lecture

         18  on the New York City Zoning Resolution.

         19                 I am here to testify on the present

         20  status and future of zoning in New York City. First

         21  and foremost, most if not all rezoning changes in

         22  the City are developer and market driven. The City

         23  usually reacts with a zoning change to address the

         24  proposed projects or to address the out of scale

         25  proposals after prodding by community groups.

                                                            151

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 Second, what New York City is lacking

          3  is a comprehensive long- range master zoning plan to

          4  guide the growth and development of the City and one

          5  that includes analysis, recommendations and

          6  proposals for the City's population, economy,

          7  housing, transportation, community facilities and

          8  land use. It is my understanding that a City

          9  comprehensive zoning plan is a requirement of State

         10  enabling legislation that permits New York City to

         11  have its own zoning resolution.

         12                 CIVITAS' zoning concerns within

         13  Community Board 8, Manhattan, include the following:

         14  1. The issue of ending the inequality in treatment

         15  of a community facility's right to increase the

         16  floor area ratio (FAR) from 4.0 to 5.1 in a R8- B

         17  district. 2. The end of rear yard incursions by all

         18  community facility uses (including religious

         19  institutions and schools) in medium density zoning

         20  districts, such as an R8- B.

         21                 CIVITAS' zoning concerns within

         22  Community Board 11, Manhattan, include the

         23  following: 1. In 1973, the State prepared a

         24  Transportation Control Plan to comply with federal

         25  clean air standards in the borough of Manhattan
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          2  south of 110th Street in response to the federal

          3  clean air act of 1970. Since it has now been

          4  determined that East Harlem has the highest

          5  hospitalization rate for asthma in the country, the

          6  State and City need to revisit the Transportation

          7  Control Plan to include all of Manhattan.

          8                 2. Although CIVITAS did not oppose

          9  the rezoning in 1999 of the former Washburn Wire

         10  Factory on East 116th Street and the FDR Drive, from

         11  an M2- 2 and R7- 2 to a C4- 4 to permit the $170

         12  million East River Plaza regional shopping center to

         13  include a 24/7 Home Depot, Costco and off- street

         14  parking in a primarily low- scale, low- density

         15  residential neighborhood, I thought it was not a

         16  wise planning decision. In addition, two special

         17  permits were issued by the City modifying the zoning

         18  bulk and permitting an increase in parking from 527

         19  to 1,248 spaces.

         20                 3. The rezoning of a site in 2004 at

         21  East 125th Street and Park Avenue from C4- 4, R7- 2,

         22  C1- 2 into a C4- 7 zoning district to permit the

         23  construction of the $200 million, 55- story reduced

         24  to 45- story Harlem Park Hotel, which would make it

         25  the tallest building in all of Harlem.
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          2                 4. The proposed rezoning in 2005 of a

          3  site at East 125th to 127th Streets, Second to Third

          4  Avenues, from C4- 4, M1- 2, R7- 2 to a C4- 6 zoning

          5  district to permit the construction of the Uptown

          6  New York $1 billion mixed- used complex, to include

          7  1,500 residential units, 700,000 of commercial

          8  space, 1,000 space indoor garage and an indoor

          9  garage for 80 MTA buses. The City has since

         10  withdrawn this proposal and is working with a

         11  Community Board 11 Task Force to come up with a more

         12  community involved proposal.

         13                 5. On the positive side, in 2003, the

         14  City rezoned 50 blocks in East Harlem, from East

         15  99th Street, East of Lexington Avenue from a

         16  predominate R7- 2 to a R7A, R7B, R7X, R8A and C4- 4D

         17  contextual Zoning district, the first comprehensive

         18  rezoning since 1961.

         19                 6. On another positive note, in 2003

         20  the City with Community Boards 9, 10 and 11 began a

         21  125th Street River- To- River Study, from 124th to

         22  126th Street, to include recommendations for urban

         23  design, streetscape, zoning, transportation and

         24  economic development. On May 2, 2006, the City

         25  presented a 125th Street Preliminary Zoning
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          2  Framework for community review as part of this

          3  study. Unfortunately, the overall comprehensive

          4  study is still not complete and not keeping pace

          5  with major projects that are getting underway

          6  without the benefit of this study.

          7

          8  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF

          9  ADAM FRIEDMAN

         10  NEW YORK INDUSTRIAL RETENTION NETWORK

         11

         12                 Good morning. I am Adam Friedman,

         13  Executive Director of the New York Industrial

         14  Retention Network, a Citywide non- profit that works

         15  to keep manufacturing jobs in the City. In many

         16  ways, this Administration has proven itself

         17  absolutely visionary in laying the foundation for

         18  the City's growth for the next century.

         19  Unfortunately, they have sought to develop the City

         20  of the 21st century with the zoning tools of the

         21  mid- 20th century. The absence of new zoning tools

         22  risks tens of thousands of decent well- paying jobs,

         23  risks the unique qualities of neighborhoods that

         24  attracted development to them in the first place,

         25  and risks the diversity that makes New York the
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          2  cultural and entrepreneurial center of the United

          3  States.

          4                 I would like to offer three new

          5  zoning tools, developed by the Zoning for Jobs

          6  Coalition. Zoning for Jobs includes approximately 50

          7  unions, community groups and environmental justice

          8  organizations that united to advocate for new land

          9  use strategies to promote the retention of well-

         10  paying blue- collar jobs.

         11                 The first tool is Industrial

         12  Employment Districts, which would be mapped as an

         13  overlay in the City's most dense industrial areas.

         14  It would require a special permit for non-

         15  manufacturing uses currently allowed as- of- right,

         16  such as superstores, waste transfer stations,

         17  hotels, and large offices. The special permit

         18  process would help stabilize real estate costs.

         19  Stability is essential to companies looking to

         20  invest and create jobs. At the same time, Industrial

         21  Employment Districts would allow new office or

         22  housing development in adjacent areas without

         23  setting off speculative pressures in the IEDs.

         24                 Resolution 141, currently before the

         25  Council, would initiate an application to City
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          2  Planning to create Industrial Employment Districts.

          3  IEDs illustrate the problem of the zoning resolution

          4  failing to keep up with changes in land use. Forty

          5  years ago, nobody imagined a store of 100,000 square

          6  foot with thousands of car trips being located in a

          7  remote manufacturing area. IEDs would also create a

          8  safe haven for companies displaced by other

          9  rezonings.

         10                 The boundaries for these areas are

         11  pretty clear. In April, a Commission appointed by

         12  the Mayor including the City Planning, HPD, DSBS,

         13  EDC and the Borough Presidents approved the

         14  boundaries for 15 Industrial Business Zones. These

         15  IBZs sound like zoning but are not. They reflect a

         16  policy decision that these areas are not appropriate

         17  for housing and should be encouraged for industrial

         18  uses. However, this or a subsequent administration

         19  could change that policy, and the boundaries,

         20  without Council review. This Administration's

         21  commitment should be reinforced through zoning for

         22  Industrial Employment Districts.

         23                 Second, New York needs balanced

         24  mixed- use zones. Many of New York City's most

         25  vibrant neighborhoods are a mix of light industry,
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          2  small stores and residents who often work in the

          3  nearby factories. Greenpoint and Williamsburg are

          4  great examples of where a diversity of spaces

          5  fostered a mix of uses that led to vibrant, creative

          6  communities.

          7                 Unfortunately, in several

          8  neighborhoods, including Greenpoint, Williamsburg

          9  and Hunters Point, the City is replacing Special

         10  Districts with "MX" zones that allow residential

         11  development without any mechanisms to maintain the

         12  diversity of uses. We have seen a dramatic change in

         13  these areas. Companies and jobs are being lost.

         14                 Balanced mixed- use zones would

         15  maintain the character of neighborhoods through

         16  mechanisms that permit some conversion but also

         17  preserve a balance of uses. They would also include

         18   "good neighbor" mechanisms to ensure environmental

         19  compatibility over such issues as noise, odor and

         20  parking.

         21                 Finally, the City should implement a

         22  system of impact fees which are used widely

         23  throughout the United States. These fees help pay

         24  for new infrastructure like roads and sewers made

         25  necessary by new development. In New York, the
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          2  infrastructure is largely already built and the

          3  impact of new development is more likely to be felt

          4  by residents and businesses threatened by

          5  gentrification. Issues of open space, affordable

          6  housing and jobs should not come down to last minute

          7  negotiations which often pit one community need

          8  against another. The City would have a much better

          9  chance of preventing jobs from being lost if it had

         10  the programs an revenue stream in place when the

         11  zoning is changed, not months or years later.

         12                 Years ago, the City had a zoning

         13  requirement in some areas that when manufacturing

         14  space was converted to residential use, the

         15  developer had to contribute to a fund to help

         16  displaced companies. Impact fees should be revived

         17  and include a mechanism for allocating the funds

         18  between a community's various needs.

         19                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         20  testify. We look forward to working with the Council

         21  to create 21st century zoning for a 21st century

         22  City.

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 1:05 p.m.)
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         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22                 -----------------------

                              LORI SANTOMIERI

         23

         24

         25

